
ANNUAL REPORT 
2017/18





Productivity SA 1  

Contents
Part A: General Information 2
General Information 3
List of Abbreviations/Acronyms 4
Foreword by the Chairman 5
Overview by the Chief Executive Officer 8
Statement of Responsibility and Confirmation of Accuracy for the Annual Report  12
Strategic Overview 13
Legislative and other Mandates 13
Organisational Structure  16
Board Members 17
Executive Management 18

Part B: Performance Information 19
Auditor’s Report: Predetermined Objectives 20
Overview of Productivity SA’s Performance 20
Performance Information by Programme 22
Revenue Collection 33

Part C: Governance  34
Introduction 35
Portfolio Committees  35
Executive Authority 35
The Accounting Authority/Board  35
Risk Management 37
Internal Control Unit 37
Internal Audit and Audit Committee 38
Compliance with Laws and Regulations 39
Fraud and Corruption  39
Minimising Conflict of Interest 39
Code of Conduct  39
Health Safety and Environmental Issues 40
Audit and Risk Committee Report 40

Part D: Human Resources and Management  42
Introduction  43
Human Resources Oversight Statistics  47
Training and Development 49
Organisational Development  51
Recruitment and Selection 54
Labour Relations: Misconduct and Disciplinary Action 56
Workforce Profile 56
Equity Target and Employment Equity Status 59

Part E: Financial Information 60
Independent Auditor’s Report to Parliament on Productivity SA 61
Annexure – Auditor’s responsibility for the audit 64
Statement of Financial Position  65
Statement of Financial Performance  66
Statement of Changes in Net Assets  67
Cash Flow Statement  67
Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts 68
Accounting Policies 69
Notes to the Financial Statements  81

Part F: Case Studies 94
Engineering Solutions Case Study – Turnaround Solutions  95
SBS Tanks Case Study – Turnaround Solutions 100
Airventfil Case Study – Workplace Challenge Programme 102
SANACO Case Study – Productivity Organisational Solutions 110
Korema Farms Case Study – Productivity Organisational Solutions 115



PART A
GENERAL 
INFORMATION



Productivity SA 3  

General Information
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List of Abbreviations/Acronyms
ALMP Active Labour Market Policies
APP Annual Performance Plan
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Productivity SA remains committed to delivering on its legislative mandate, which is to promote 
employment growth and productivity thereby contributing to South Africa’s socio-economic 
development and competitiveness. Section 32 of the Employment Services Act, No. 4 of 2014, read 
together with sections 2 and 7 of the Act enjoins Productivity SA to develop and enhance relevant 
productivity competencies and business efficiency within the workplace.

During the year under review, Productivity SA, like other productivity centres in the developing 
world, more so on the African continent, operated in a fluid environment and had to grapple with 
the changing socio-economic and industry landscape to remain relevant and sustainable.

For the 2016/17 Financial Year, Productivity SA posted a 64% performance level. Despite the stable 
performance, the Turnaround Solutions Programme aimed at supporting enterprises facing 
economic distress and preventing job losses remains a challenge in terms of its feasibility. The failure 
by DoL/UIF to transfer funds on time and in full, which has been ongoing for the past three years, 
resulted in the Board suspending the programme in 2017 due to lack of funds. The suspension of 
the Turnaround Solutions Programme hampered the delivery of the entity‘s legislative mandate, 
financial viability and its going concern status. Measures are being put into place to address the 
challenge including revision of the Business Model. 

The Board commend Productivity SA‘s leadership for maintaining an unqualified audit status despite 
the financial challenges facing the organisation. This is commendable and demonstrates that the 
systems and controls set in place to maintain good governance are adhered to and monitored. A 
continued maintenance of this excellent track record and discipline will ensure that the organisation 
continues to operate in a sustainable manner.

As we present this Annual Report, the challenges facing the South African economy continue, with 
unemployment sitting at 27% and the GDP stagnant at 1% which is way below the NDP target of 
6% required over the next 10 years towards the 2030 objectives to reduce poverty, unemployment 
and inequality. Full and productive employment, decent work for all particularly for women and 
youth, and equal pay remain a huge point of concern.

To respond to the growth and development challenges facing the country and in order to remain 
relevant, the entity reviewed its Business Model, which the Board approved in the last quarter of 
the Financial Year. The Business Model review included aligning the entity’s Enterprise Support 
Programmes to respond to the national development agenda. 

Foreword by the 
Chairman

It gives me great pleasure to present Productivity SA’s Annual Report 
for the 2017/18 Financial Year that ended on the 31st March 2018.  
We present this Annual Report driven by our vision to lead and 
inspire a productive and competitive South Africa.

Mthunzi Mdwaba
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Much of our focus during the 2017/18 Financial Year was on improving the productivity and 
competitiveness levels of our country, motivated by our understanding that it is through enhanced 
productivity that sustainable and inclusive economic growth is generated. One of the key considerations 
in this regard was that, if South Africa is to achieve a high-income economy, the country should 
acknowledge and embrace productivity and innovation as the main drivers and game changer 
for long-term economic stability and living standards. Our determination is backed by empirical 
evidence that it is through enhanced productivity that economic growth is generated, the exports 
and trade position of a country becomes better, enabling it to compete with foreign firms in the 
global market, and ensures the creation of skills and decent jobs. 

The attempts to ensure improvement in productivity in South Africa and to enhance competitiveness 
has necessitated Productivity SA to be innovative and creative in its use of extremely limited resources 
for enhanced marketing and leveraging of Public Relations and Communications opportunities 
through the various events we host, as well as via social media platforms such as Twitter. 

In our engagements with strategic partners during the year, we observed that there is a fundamental 
lack of appreciation of the role Productivity SA should be playing in the economy and industry, 
in terms of employment and income growth, harmonious labour relations, and transformation of 
the economy to broaden participation of the historically excluded. One other critical observation 
was that countries that are leaders in economic growth place a huge emphasis on the centrality 
of productivity in their planning. It is regrettable that our National Development Plan (NDP) does 
not place much emphasis on productivity as a gateway to economic growth and competitiveness. 
This is a matter that requires urgent review and correction.

The Minimum Wage discussions based on Convention 131 of the International Labour Organization 
(ILO), which sees productivity as being integral to Minimum Wage discussions, is another typical 
example of a missed opportunity. Productivity SA was not central to the discussions and had to 
operate from the sidelines.

Recent Jobs Summit preparations that were initially organised without Productivity SA’s involvement 
further demonstrated a lack of understanding of the role the entity should play. However, through 
the efforts of Productivity SA’s management team, the entity managed to be part of the discourse 
on job creation as envisaged by the Employment Services Act. 

There is a drastic need for an urgent attitudinal change by our country led by the Department of 
Labour to place productivity and Productivity SA at the centre of everything we do, if we are to 
change and do better with the creation and preservation of jobs.

The future key focus of Productivity SA’s Enterprise Support Programmes is to implement the NDP 
and contribute to South Africa’s strategic objectives to promote long-term industrialisation and 
transformation of the economy through targeting enterprises within the productive sectors of the 
economy with a focus on IPAP Priority Sectors. 

The programmes further aim to contribute to decent work for all, wealth and income growth and 
minimising the retrenchment of workers. We also aim to provide cutting-edge productivity-related 
research, statistics and innovative solutions to improve the productivity and competitiveness of 
the economy. 

The drivers for this change remain the entity‘s desire to achieve a competitive and high-income 
economy which can adequately navigate the issues confronting economies across the globe, 
particularly developing economies as all face the changing nature of work, future of work and 
the 4th Industrial Revolution. It is without doubt that we are on track towards the realisation of 
Productivity SA‘s vision, which is to lead and inspire a productive and competitive South Africa. What 
keeps us awake at night as the Board and management is the issue of slower productivity growth 
in the productive sectors of our economy generally, in particular in small and medium enterprises.

As previously mentioned, Productivity SA is motivated by the overwhelming empirical evidence 
that supports the notion that productivity and innovation are directly linked to job creation. This 
drive is also supported by studies across the world, particularly in the twenty most competitive 
economies (GCI: 2017), including Germany, Nordic countries and Asia, which show that improving 
the levels of national productivity and innovation is the most efficient way to realise the average 
GDP growth rate. 

It is for the above reasons that the Board is exploring amongst other policy measures, the 
institutionalisation of Kaizen and 5S business-performance and productivity-improvement techniques 
in South Africa and to establish a Competitiveness Council for the country. 

The Kaizen initiative will include establishing Best Practice in Kaizen Application and benchmarking 
with other countries such as Ethiopia, Kenya and Ghana. The initiative will also entail developing 
a Kaizen Curriculum; developing a Kaizen Consultant Certification System; developing a Kaizen 
Award System and exploring application of the Basics of Toyota Production System across the 
manufacturing sector in the country. 

The Establishment of a Competitiveness Council for South Africa will focus on developing and 
monitoring the implementation of a National Productivity and Competitiveness Strategy, a National 
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Productivity Index and promote and integrate a much-needed productivity and innovation mindset 
in the country in support of the NDP Goals. This is critical. We have to change our outlook and instill 
a productive culture within every part of our society. While this cannot be, and is not a silver bullet 
for our unemployment challenges, it is certainly a very important ingredient to doing so.

Productivity SA is already involved in a partnership with the Pan African Productivity Association 
(PAPA) and the Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA). The entity will continue discussing 
with NEPAD and JICA to access the technical assistance offered under the Africa Kaizen Initiative. 

Alongside the strategic interventions to improve performance of the core productive sectors of 
our economy and other programmes towards the realisation of the NDP – Vision 2030, training 
and educating the workforce of the future is critical. 

Productivity SA will contribute towards the development of world-class centres and programmes 
in the national system of productivity and innovation, including establishing better links between 
industry and higher education, assisting investment in new technologies such as digitalisation and 
automation capabilities (the key enabling technologies to support the 4th Industrial Revolution – 
‘Industry 4.0’) and encouraging innovation based on long-term strategic investment, which are all 
considered essential steps and form the primary action points for a productivity-driven, inclusive 
and sustainable growth and development agenda. 

These strategic interventions cannot be achieved without sound governance, a compliance 
framework and proper financial management. 

It is without doubt that, despite the success attained by Productivity SA, one of the bottlenecks 
in carrying out its expanded mandate has been budgetary constraints. We therefore require an 
exponential growth in our budget allocation to facilitate the prominence of productivity and economic 
growth within the country. The current financial position and sustainability is not favourable and 
threatens the going concern status of the entity.

Productivity SA conducted an Organisational Review and Design, which resulted in the design of a 
new Organisational Structure which intends to enhance the entity‘s resources and capabilities. The 
review also aims to expand the entity‘s national footprint and to adequately provide services across 
the three regional offices of Midrand, Cape Town and Durban. As we restructure the organisation, 
there is a need to maintain the current capability and not compromise the delivery of Annual 
Performance Plans as signed with the Department of Labour (DoL) including programmes that are 
funded by the dti (Workplace Challenge Programme) and the UIF (Turnaround Solutions Progamme).

The Workplace Challenge Programme funded by the dti and the Productivity Organisational Solutions 
Programme remain Productivity SA’s Business Transformation and Competitiveness Improvement 
flagship programmes. The flagship programmes are focused towards targeted interventions in 
the strategic economic sectors as identified in the IPAP. The economic sectors include Mining 
(Platinum Group Metals), Manufacturing (Metal Fabrication) as well as Agriculture (Agro-processing 
and Agri-business). The Workplace Challenge Programme will continue to make the participation 
of historically disadvantaged people and regions in the economy a priority, thereby supporting 
meaningful B-BBEE using instruments such as Special Economic Zones (SEZs), Industrial Parks and 
Black Industrialists interventions. 

Demand for the programmes is gradually increasing and engagements with the dti and DoL to 
ensure that the programmes are adequately funded into the next Medium Term Strategic Framework, 
2019/20 – 2023/24 are ongoing.

The support we receive from DoL in terms of budget allocation through the appropriation from 
Parliament, the dti through the financial and technical support towards implementation of the 
Workplace Challenge Programme as well as Transnet through funding of Enterprise Development 
Programme contributed immensely to the success in achieving the entity‘s mandate. 

In conclusion, I would like to take this opportunity and thank the board members and Productivity 
SA staff members for their support and guidance in all matters related to the Board. I relay gratitude 
to the Portfolio Committee on Labour for their oversight role and departments that provide funding 
for the entity, namely, the DoL and the dti. 

Lastly I acknowledge and thank the Director General of DoL, Mr Thobile Lamati, and the Minister, 
Ms Mildred Oliphant, for their continued support and guidance.

 

Mr Mthunzi Mdwaba
Chairman of the Board
Productivity SA 

26 July 2018
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Productivity SA is established in terms of section 31 (1) of the Employment Services Act, No. 4 of 2014 
as a juristic person with the mandate to promote employment growth and productivity, thereby 
contributing to South Africa’s socio-economic development and competitiveness.

During the year under review, we revised our strategic plan to ensure alignment with the Act, the 
Framework for Strategic Plans and Annual Performance Plans, the National Development Plan and 
other policy instruments aimed at promoting decent employment creation as well as inclusive and 
sustainable growth and development. We also refocused our programmes to targeted interventions 
in the strategic economic sectors such as Mining (Platinum Group Metals), Manufacturing (Metal 
Fabrication) as well as Agriculture (Agro-processing and Agri-business). 

These interventions resulted in an improvement in organisational performance. 

APP 2015-16 APP 2016-17 APP 2017-18 TREND

Planned 
targets 

O
verall 

achieved

%
 Achieved

Planned 
targets 

O
verall 

achieved

%
 Achieved

Planned 
targets 

O
verall 

achieved

%
 Achieved

2015–2017/18

42 15 36% 41 28 68% 28 18 64%
    

Key strategic objectives achievements during the year 
under review
• We were able to achieve 18 (64%) of the 28 KPIs set for the year, with poor performance in the 

Turnaround Solutions Programme and Corporate Service due mainly to funding challenges. 

• The Turnaround Solutions Programme provides support to enterprises facing economic distress 
and initiatives or schemes aimed at minimising the retrenchment of employees or preventing 
job losses. With the reduced funding received (R20 million instead of R79 million) from the 
Unemployment Insurance Fund (UIF) Productivity SA has, through the Turnaround Solutions 
Programme provided support to 71 companies facing economic distress by restructuring and 
improving their productivity and operational efficiency thereby minimising the retrenchment 
of workers. In the process, potential job losses or retrenchments prevented during this period 
amounted to 8 504. Furthermore, 62 Capacity Building trainings/workplace forums were 
established and 431 members thereof were trained and empowered to promote consultation 
and dialogue on productivity-improvement solutions between management and workers. 

Mothunye Mothiba 

Overview by the  
Chief Executive Officer
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•  The Productivity Organisational Solutions (POS) Programme provides productivity-awareness 
and business-improvement workshops aimed at cultivating a productivity mindset and 
behaviour among cooperatives and emerging entrepreneurs. A total of 5 850 beneficiaries 
(emerging entrepreneurs/cooperatives, Education, Training and Developments (ETDs) Skills 
Development Facilitators (SDFs) were capacitated in 2017/18 on productivity-related concepts.

• During the 2017/18 Financial Year, 590 companies were supported through the Workplace 
Challenge (WPC) Programme resulting in the creation of 268 jobs while 146 871 jobs were 
sustained. 

Financial viability as well as the going concern status of Productivity SA remains a challenge. 

During the year under review, Productivity SA posted a surplus of R6.263 million. Exchange revenue 
was down 35% to R6.017 million for the year from R9.199 million in the previous year. This, however, 
is not a reflection on the ability to generate own revenue, but rather a change in the operational 
model of the organisation. In addition, there was a change in the accounting treatment where 
previously certain WPC costs were carried by Productivity SA and thus disclosing recoveries as 
income, WPC costs are now fully disclosed in the WPC Annual Financial Statements.

Spending trends of the public entity
Over and above the key operating expenses essential to keep the company fully functional, the 
spending trend of Productivity SA is driven by its mandate, which is to promote employment 
growth and productivity, thereby contributing to South Africa’s socio-economic development 
and competitiveness. The majority of the expenditure goes towards rolling out interventions to 
achieve the desired impact. 

Our value proposition is carried out through three key programmes namely TAS, WPC and POS, 
which are designed to fulfil Productivity SA’s mandate. Funding for the TAS programme was received 
late and not according to the signed Memorandum of Agreement (MoA). Only 19% of the agreed 
funding was received and only received late in the Financial Year. This resulted in TAS not being 
able to spend funds allocated in a timely manner. The impact of reduced funding is dealt with in 
detail in the Performance Information section of the Annual Report 2017/18.

WPC and POS fully utilised funds allocated during the Financial Year and these programmes have 
advanced the necessary objectives required to fulfil Productivity SA’s mandate.

Capacity constraints and challenges facing the public 
entity
Productivity SA’s current funding model does not allow the organisation to adequately achieve its national 
mandate of leading and inspiring a competitive and productive South Africa. The organisation is also 
under-resourced in terms of human capacity and the lack of required resources hinders the entity‘s ability 
to make a meaningful and desirable impact nationwide.

Some of the constraints and challenges that are preventing Productivity SA from achieving its 
mandate include:

• insufficient funding for covering operational costs;

• low market share for Productivity SA services and products offering (inadequate product and 
service modification/improvement); 

• lack of a clearly defined value proposition; 

• limited national footprint resulting in inadequate provincial coverage of service offering; 

• inadequate resource and capabilities that serve as a competitive advantage for Productivity 
SA over its competitors;

• inability to attract and retain competent skills); and 

• few service delivery channels.

Discontinued services
The activity on number of companies (retrenched workers/vulnerable workers) supported through 
the micro-enterprise development and self-employment support programmes was discontinued. 
It was anticipated that the 2017/18 UIF funding agreement would include supporting retrenched 
workers/vulnerable workers through micro-enterprise development and self-employment support 
programmes; however, that was not realised, therefore making it impossible to achieve this target.
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New or proposed activities
In the 2018/19 Financial Year Productivity SA will implement the following key projects to achieve 
its goals of repositioning Productivity SA to lead a productivity-driven growth and development 
agenda for South Africa and to be sustainable: 

1. Enhance Productivity SA’s Enterprise Support Programmes to support the achievement of a 
productive, high-income economy which is globally competitive. 

2. Organisational review and design, with a view of expanding the footprint of Productivity SA 
to all nine (9) provinces. 

3. Enhance the Research and Knowledge Management capability to effectively conduct cutting-
edge research and modernisation of Knowledge Management Systems and Productivity 
Improvement Solutions. 

4. Establish a Productivity and Competitiveness Council and Productivity Consultative Forums 
to promote the productivity movement and foster a strong productivity mindset among 
South Africans.

Productivity SA has taken note that NEPAD has been identified in partnership with the JICA to 
implement the agreement between the African Union and the Japanese Government – Tokyo 
International Conference on African Development (TICAD VI) which is aimed at supporting the 
implementation of the African Union Agenda 2063. The focus will be on the first aspiration of the 
agenda: A Prosperous Africa, based on inclusive growth and sustainable development.

In partnership with NEPAD/JICA and other strategic partners, Productivity SA seeks to develop an 
accredited Kaizen programme. The Kaizen programme will be promoted for adoption by the country.

Requests for roll-over of funds
Productivity SA was given permission to roll-over unused funds plus interest in the TAS bank account 
for the 2017/18 Financial Year.

Supply chain management
Productivity SA follows the provisions of the Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act (PPPFA) 
and its own Supply Chain Management (SCM) policy to ensure a strong internal control and 
compliance environment. The following are true for the Financial Year under review:

• There were no unsolicited bid proposals that were under review; and 

• SCM processes and systems are in place and continue to be improved.

The company still experienced instances of non-compliance with the three-quotation system as 
required by PPPFA due to the nature of WPC and TAS programmes. The implementation of the 
SCM committees namely Bid and Evaluation Committee and the Adjudication Committee has 
eliminated these problems.

Audit report matters in the previous year and how they 
were addressed

Predetermined objectives
Productivity SA has implemented a Performance Management Tool that will ensure that quarterly 
reporting is consistent and in line with approved predetermined objectives.

Collection of revenue
Letters of demand were sent to customers requesting that all outstanding debts be settled and a 
positive response was received resulting in long-outstanding debts being settled.

Procurement and contract management
Disciplinary hearings were conducted for all SCM non-compliance issues in line with the Treasury 
Regulations as well as company policy.
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Outlook/plans for the future to address financial 
challenges
The implementation of the Business Model will bring about the desired change in Productivity SA 
to enable it to carry out its mandate of promoting employment, income and wealth growth and 
productivity.

Productivity SA strives to lead a productivity-driven growth and development agenda, including 
promoting and integrating the productivity and competitiveness mindset and culture in everything 
we do as a country.

Events after the reporting date
Productivity SA received payment of R6.482 million from the Unemployment Insurance Fund as 
part settlement of amounts owing to the entity.

Economic viability
Economic viability of Productivity SA is dependent on continued government funding as well as 
the successful implementation of the business plan. We believe that the company is economically 
viable and will continue in business and existence for the near future. The focus will be on the first 
aspiration of the agenda: A Prosperous Africa, based on inclusive growth and sustainable development.

Acknowledgement or appreciation
I would like to extend my gratitude to the Board of Productivity SA for their visionary leadership. 
I would also like to thank the Honourable Minister of Labour, Ms Mildred Oliphant, for her continued 
support, the dti, UIF and Department of Labour (DoL) for their continued funding.

Furthermore, my gratitude goes to the staff of Productivity SA for ensuring that the entity makes 
a meaningful impact in promoting and enhancing the competitiveness of South Africa and its 
enterprises.

Annual Financial Statement note 
The entity registered a surplus of R6.263 million during the Financial Year.

Mr Mothunye Mothiba
Chief Executive Officer

26 July 2018
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Statement of Responsibility and 
Confirmation of Accuracy for the 
Annual Report 
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following: 

All information and amounts disclosed in the Annual Report are consistent with the Annual Financial 
Statements audited by the Nexia SAB&T.

The Annual Report is complete, accurate and free from any omissions.

The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the Annual Report as 
issued by National Treasury.

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the SA Standards 
of GRAP.

The Accounting Authority is responsible for the preparation of the Annual Financial Statements 
and for the judgements made in this information. 

The Accounting Authority is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal 
control that has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of 
the performance information, the human resources information and the Annual Financial Statements.

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the Annual Financial 
Statements.

In our opinion, the Annual Report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the 
human resources information and the financial affairs of the public entity for the Financial Year 
ended 31 March 2018.

Yours faithfully 

Mr Mothunye Mothiba
Chief Executive Officer

26 July 2018

Mr Mthunzi Mdwaba
Chairman of the Board

26 July 2018
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Strategic Overview
Vision
To lead and inspire a competitive South Africa.

Mission
To improve productivity by diagnosing, advising, implementing, monitoring and evaluating solutions 
aimed at improving South Africa’s sustainable growth, development and employment through 
increased competitiveness.

Values 
• Service excellence through the implementation of relevant solutions;

• Market leadership through creative and innovative solutions;

• Working together as a team to achieve common goals;

• Partner with stakeholders pursuing solutions to South Africa’s productivity challenge; and

• Honesty, integrity and professionalism are the cornerstone of all our relations.

Legislative and other Mandates
Productivity SA’s strategic goals and programmes operate within the confines of the South African 
Labour Legislative framework and Active Labour Market Policies and Programmes that are informed 
by the South African Constitution, Chapter 2, and Bill of Rights, with a focus on amongst others 
the following: 

• Section 9, to ensure equal access to opportunities;

• Section 10, promotion of labour standards and fundamental rights at work; 

• Section 24, to ensure an environment that is not harmful to the health and wellbeing of those 
in the workplace; and

• Section 27, to provide adequate social security nets to protect vulnerable workers.

Other legislative mandates 

The Employment Services Act, No. 4 of 2014
Productivity SA is established in terms of section 31 of the Employment Services Act, No. 4 of 2014 
as a juristic person, with the mandate to promote employment growth and productivity, thereby 
contributing to South Africa’s socio-economic development and competitiveness.

Public Finance Management Act, No.1 of 1999, as amended
The objective of this Act is to regulate financial management in the National Government and 
Provincial Governments; to ensure that all revenue, expenditure, assets and liabilities of those 
governments are managed efficiently and effectively; and to provide for the responsibilities of 
persons entrusted with financial management in those governments and to provide for matters 
connected therewith.

The Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act, No. 5 of 
2000, as amended
In this Act, unless the context indicates otherwise ‘acceptable tender’ means any tender which, in all 
respects, complies with the specifications and conditions of tender as set out in the tender document.
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Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act, No. 53 of 2013, 
as amended 
This Act establishes a legislative framework for the promotion of Broad-Based Black Economic 
Empowerment. It furthermore empowers the Minister to issue codes of good practice, to publish  
transformation charters, to establish the Black Economic Empowerment Advisory Council and to  
provide for matters connected therewith.

Health and Safety Act, No. 85 of 1993, as amended
The Occupational Health and Safety Act aims to provide for the health and safety of persons at 
work and for the health and safety persons in connection with the activities of persons at work 
and to establish an advisory council for occupational health and safety. This is also a requirement 
for licensing of gambling operations.

The Unemployment Insurance Act, No. 30 of 2001, as amended 
(UIA)
The Act provides for financing of employment services, with section 5 (d) relating to financing of 
the retention of contributors in employment and the re-entry of contributors into the labour market 
and any other scheme aimed at vulnerable workers.

The National Development Plan, South Africa’s Vision 2030 (The NDP)
The NDP provides a long-term vision through to 2030 to deal with the challenges of unemployment, 
inequality and creating a more inclusive society. Central to meeting the vision enshrined in the 
NDP is the implementation of the New Growth Path (NGP), the Industrial Policy Action Plan (IPAP) 
and the National Infrastructure Plan.

The NDP advances government’s key developmental objectives of industrialisation, skills development, 
job creation, localisation and supplier development to create and develop black industrialists and 
entrepreneurs.

Three priorities stand out in the Plan, namely:

• Raising employment through faster economic growth, including introducing in the short-
term active labour market policies and incentives to grow employment, particularly for young 
people and in sectors employing relatively low-skilled people;

• Improving the quality of education, skills development and innovation; and

• Building the capability of the state to play a developmental and transformative role.

The NDP also recognises the importance of improving the quality of economic management for 
the purposes of both sustainability and impact on inclusion. 

The Industrial Policy Action Plan (IPAP)
The IPAP requires the country to pursue an industrial development path that is characterised by 
increased participation of previously marginalised citizens and regions of our country. 

Central to IPAP is competitiveness enhancement in productive sectors of the economy, with a 
focus on supporting agriculture and mining, the local procurement drive and other programmes. 

Government seeks to strengthen the competitiveness, productivity and trade performance of the 
core productive sectors of the economy. New opportunities in the green economy, the ocean 
economy and exports of goods and services to growing African markets will be promoted. Research 
and technology development will continue to be supported through tax incentives and partnerships 
between our science councils and the business sector.

Obstacles to the use of our mineral products in manufacturing will be addressed and options 
to support beneficiation through mining licences will be explored. The Department of Mineral 
Resources will provide increased support for exploration, development and production in mining 
in ways that lay the basis for sustained growth in output going forward.
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The Medium-Term Strategic Framework 2014–2019

Productivity SA’s Strategic Plan is being reviewed to ensure alignment of its strategic objectives 
and programmes to the National Agenda as articulated in the Vision 2030; the Industrial Policy 
Action Plan; and the Medium-Term Strategic Framework 2014–2019, in particular the following 
service delivery outcomes:

• Outcome 4: Decent employment through inclusive growth;

• Outcome 5: A skilled and capable workforce to support an inclusive growth path;

• Outcome 6: An efficient, competitive and responsive economic infrastructure; 

• Outcome 11: Create a better South Africa, a better Africa and a better world; and

• Outcome 12: An efficient, effective and development-oriented public service and an 
empowered, fair and inclusive citizenship.

The core functions and services rendered by 
Productivity SA
Section 32 of the Act read together with sections 2 (1) (e) and (f ); and 7 of the Act; as well as section 5 (d) 
of the UIF Amendment Act enjoins Productivity SA to amongst others, develop relevant productivity 
competencies and competitiveness in workplaces, with a focus on the following key functions: 

1. To promote employment and income growth, and workplace productivity. This includes 
enhancing the productive and operational efficiency of emerging and existing enterprises 
(big and small) to be competitive and achieve sustained levels of inclusive economic growth 
and decent employment creation.

2. To improve the employment and re-employment prospects of employees facing retrenchments 
and retrenched workers. This includes enhancing the productive and operational efficiency of 
enterprises in economic distress (financial or operational difficulties) to be financially viable and 
competitive, through developing and implementing turn-around strategies, training lay-offs 
schemes or alternative employment opportunities.

3. To provide productivity measures and evaluate productivity improvement and competitiveness 
in workplaces. This includes developing and maintaining a data-base of productivity and 
competitiveness System and Tools, Measures and evaluating efficacy thereof in the workplace.

4. To conduct research on productivity and competitiveness related matters, and collection and 
supply of information.

5. To promote social dialogue and inculcate a culture of productivity and competitiveness mind-set 
in the workplace and all spheres of the nation’s economic and community life. These include 
sustained communication and dissemination of productivity related information, which drives 
improved competitiveness and ultimately results in prosperity for all.
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1. Auditor’s Report:  
  Predetermined Objectives
Nexia SAB&T currently performs the necessary audit procedures on the performance information 
to provide reasonable assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on the 
performance against predetermined objectives is included in the report to management, with 
findings being reported under the Predetermined Objectives heading in the Report on other legal 
and regulatory requirements section of the auditor’s report.

Refer to page 61 of the Independent Auditor’s Report, published in Part E: Financial Information.

2. Overview of Productivity SA’s 
  Performance
2.1  Service delivery environment
The mandate of Productivity SA has been expanded to include promoting employment and income 
growth as well as improving the employment and re-employment prospects of employees facing 
retrenchments, without concomitant deployment of additional funding to deliver on this mandate.

The expanded mandate will require of the entity to develop and provide support services in the form 
of Integrated Productivity Improvement Solutions and Techniques, productivity-related research and a 
suite of Business Processes Improvement Tools and Techniques which systematically help businesses. 
Productivity SA aims to enhance the productive capacity and operational efficiency of enterprises throughout 
the business lifecycle to accelerate wealth and decent employment creation through the following: 

• Developing and implementing custom designed solutions to operational efficiency* level challenges 
faced by industry sectors and/or individual businesses. This is done in order to improve the financial 
viability and sustainability of industry sectors and/or individual businesses which in turn will provide 
for improved employment prospects. *(Operational efficiency improvement interventions are 
aimed at improving the ability of industry sectors and/or individual businesses to become more 
competitive in terms of Quality, Cost, Delivery/Speed of operations). The involvement of employees in 
the process of pursuing efficiency improvement results in improved morale and engagement levels;

• Providing Turnaround Strategies to enhance the productive and operational efficiency of organisations 
and companies in economic distress (financial and operational difficulties) to improve their productivity 
and competitiveness, thereby financial viability and job security;

• The Workplace transformation Programme, aimed at implementing best practices within small groups 
of enterprises or clusters within a value chain. This is where businesses discover how to implement 
the principles of Continuous Improvement, including the four foundations to being world-class, 
i.e. Goal Alignment, Cleaning and Organising, Teamwork and Leadership, and Incorporating Cost, 
Productivity and Quality Improvement Techniques;

• Providing support to SOEs and Multinationals (Equity Equivalent Commitments) to implement and 
achieve their B-BBEE Targets relating to Enterprise and Supplier Development Programmes. The 
offering and support will include enhancing the productive capacity and operational efficiency 
of participating enterprises, with a focus on small businesses and Cooperatives to increase their 
participation in the mainstream economy. We offer various Integrated Productivity Improvement 
Solutions and Techniques, action learning solutions to assist the enterprises with the right skills, 
knowledge and attitudes to implement systems and procedures to improve their competitiveness; 

• Enhancing the productive capacity and operational efficiency of SMMEs, Cooperatives, Township 
and Rural Enterprises, within the Informal Sector Support Policy in partnership with the Department 
of Small Business Development; and

• Capacitating management and worker level employees – through skill development initiatives and 
the provision of relevant systems, tools and methods – to deal with operational efficiency challenges 
in order to create more sustainable and competitive business entities which in turn provides for 
improved employment prospects.

To deliver these services will require dedicated and capable resources to conduct research into the 
performance of the economy at large, industry sectors and individual businesses in order to identify 
opportunities for growth and/or performance improvement which, if properly exploited, will result in 
improved economic prosperity at the national level, industry sector level and individual business level. 
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Furthermore, to improve service delivery, we will embark on an exercise to Repositioning Productivity 
SA as an Apex Organisation – Authority and Centre of Excellence on productivity and competitiveness 
issues. This will require of a review of our Business Model and conducting an Organisational Review and 
Design with a focus on enhancing the capacity of the Regional Offices to deliver quality services closer 
to where our clients are.  Further to the above, strategic alliances and partnerships will be established 
with Economic Cluster Departments of Government and State Owned Entities to ensure a focused 
support to Government Strategic Programmes aimed at sustainable employment and income growth.

This will be achieved through interventions in SEZs, industrial parks, competitiveness enhancement 
programmes, Black Industrialists and Enterprise and Supplier Development (ESD) programmes. Productivity 
SA focused on the following Priority Areas and Programmes, which has a potential for creation of decent 
employment:

• Revitalising agriculture and the agro-processing value chain; and

• Advancing beneficiation or adding value to the miner.

2.2  Organisational environment
Productivity SA, is South Africa’s institution mandated to improve productivity and operational efficiency 
in all economic sectors, however, has not yet optimally exerted its authority and means to influence the 
efficiency and productivity of sectors that are vital to the competitiveness of our economy. The urgency 
exists, more than ever before, to motivate the workforce and management to continuously seek better and 
easier ways of improving work performance and product/service quality.

To deliver on its mandate to promote employment growth and productivity, thereby contributing to South 
Africa’s socio-economic development and competitiveness, the entity only has a staff complement of 107, 
which falls short if it has to deliver services to enterprises and industry clusters in the economy, particularly 
the productive sectors of our economy.

The Labour Market challenges as articulated in the macro environmental analysis serve as a catalyst for 
repositioning Productivity SA as an Apex Organisation and Centre of Excellence in the national employment 
policy framework and vehicle for implementation of Public Employment Services, in particular delivery of 
Active Labour Market Policies and Programmes, with a focus on promoting productivity improvement and 
competitiveness in workplaces.

Productivity SA’s activities will be expanded to cover productivity improvement in areas beyond industry 
with the participation of labour and management, academic experts and government.

These will include measures to improve the quality of Public Employment Services towards implementation 
of Active Labour Market Policies (ALMPs) and deliver on Active Labour Activation Programmes and incentives 
to grow employment, particularly for young people and in sectors employing relatively low-skilled people, 
as well as measures to support microenterprise development and self-employment programmes.

The above environment will definitely require of the leadership of the entity to have a thorough understanding 
of the South African socio-economic landscape and labour market challenges.

Furthermore, Productivity SA’s challenges lie in addressing its operational and financial obligations, which 
gave rise to the review of the current Business Model to ensure growth and financial sustainability of the 
organisation, whilst demonstrating the impact of its mandate to the South African economy in general 
and to the Labour Market in particular. 

Productivity SA has over the past years experienced financial challenges which have subsequently rendered 
the institution insolvent, with an overspending on its budget at over R9m per annum. 

The objective of the Business Model Innovation Project is to provide a clear definition of how Productivity SA 
will in the future continue innovating in order to create and deliver value to its customers, and in instances 
where they have to pay for such, a rationale will be provided on why they should appreciate the value derived 
and pay for such, and our ability to convert those payments to our financial viability and business continuity.

There has been a decline in funding from some of the entity’s funders and this has proved to be a huge 
challenge. The decline in economic activity and increase in companies in distress places great demands 
on Productivity SA‘s financial and human resources.

To make all the initiatives happen, Productivity SA will invest financial resources to enhance our Infrastructure 
Management Capabilities which include resources and capabilities (infrastructure and equipment, people’s 
competencies), our Key Activities and Processes, and Partners or Strategic Alliances as well as our delivery 
channels, which are the drivers for revenue generation and financial viability.



Annual Report 2017/1822  

2.3 Key policy developments and legislative changes
The Board approved the revised Business Model.

2.4 Strategic outcome oriented goals
Productivity SA embraces the National Development Plan, Vision 2030, The Industrial Policy Action 
Plan and the Medium Term Strategic Framework 2014–2019 – as reflected in the following Key 
Outcomes:

Outcome 4: Decent employment through inclusive growth

Outcome 5: A skilled and capable workforce to support an inclusive growth path

Outcome 6: An efficient, competitive and responsive economic infrastructure network 

Outcome 11: Create a better South Africa, a better Africa and a better world

Outcome 12: An efficient, effective and development orientated public service and an empowered 
and inclusive citizenship

2.4.1 Objectives of Productivity SA
Strategic Objective 1: Strengthen the institutional capacity of Productivity SA to deliver on its 
mandate and be financially sustainable (Outcome 5 & 12)

Strategic Objective 2: Provide support to programmes aimed at sustainable employment and 
income growth (Outcome 4 & 5)

Strategic Objective 3: Provide support to companies facing economic distress to retain jobs 
(Outcome 4 & 5)

Strategic Objective 4: Contribute to employment and income growth through research, information 
generation and dissemination (Outcome 4, 6, 11, 12)

Strategic Objective 5: Promote social dialogue and a culture of productivity and competitiveness 
in the workplace and community life (Outcome 4 & 12)

3. Performance Information by  
  Programme
3.1 Programme 1: Corporate Services 

Programme purpose 
To provide strategic leadership, management and support services to Productivity SA.

Sub-programmes
• Finance, IT and Facilities; and 

• Office of the CEO (OCEO).

Objectives of the programme
• To ensure that Productivity SA adheres to governance and general compliance with policies 

and regulations. 

• Financial management capability and the ability to generate revenue for the organisation to 
be financially sustainable.

• Establishing procedures for reporting and Organisational Performance Management.
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Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements

Strategic objective 1: Strengthen the institutional capacity of Productivity SA to deliver on its mandate and be 
financially sustainable

Key performance indicators

Actual 
achievement 

2016/17

Planned 
target

2017/18

Actual 
achievement

2017/18

Deviation 
from planned 

target to 
actual 

achievement 
for 2017/18 Comment on deviation

Percentage increase in services 
income to cover operational 
costs and create reserves

New 15% 85% 70% Unbudgeted additional 
revenue.

Percentage achievement of 
APP targets

New 75% 64% (11%) 63% unachieved targets due 
to financial constraints.

25% unachieved targets due 
to lack of leadership and 
management control.

12% unachieved targets 
depended on accreditation 
from external party. 

Percentage of SME paid 
within 30 days upon receipt of 
complete invoice

New 100% 84% (16%) A business decision was 
taken by management to 
suspend payments to service 
providers due to insufficient 
funding of the entity.

B-BBEE level achieved New Level 7 Non-
compliant

100% 
deviation

Budgetary constraints 
impede the entity from 
spending enough on skills 
development to score 
minimum B-BBEE points.

Business Model Innovation 
– Report on Organisational 
Review and Design to 
reposition Productivity SA as a 
centre of excellence developed 
and recommendations 
implemented

New 1 Business 
Model 
Innovation

1 Business 
Model 
Innovation 
developed

N/a

How the performance for programmes has contributed to 
the achievement of the public entity’s strategic outcomes 
orientated goals
Improvement on the administration and general management and control of the day-to-day 
functioning of Productivity SA.

Strategy to overcome areas of under-performance

Objective Performance indicator
Strategy to address 
under-performance

To provide strategic leadership, management 
and support services to Productivity SA

Percentage achievement of APP targets An alternative funding mechanism has been 
presented to the Board and shared with the 
Department of Labour. The proposal seeks 
to shift away from the current multi-party 
funding structure (i.e. UIF, the dti, Transnet, 
DoL) to a single funder mechanism.

Percentage of SME paid within 30 days upon 
receipt of complete invoice

B-BBEE level achieved
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Changes to planned targets
The in-year changes were effected on the following targets:

• ‘Percentage improvement in achievement of APP target’ – the target to be measured cumulatively 
at the end of the Financial Year instead of having a quarterly breakdown.

• ‘Percentage compliance with PFMA and other relevant legislative (unqualified audit)’ – the 
performance indicator was revised to ‘Percentage of SME paid within 30 days upon receipt of complete 
invoice’ in order to meet the SMART principle. 

The 2017/18 APP was adjusted and approved by the Minister of Labour to rectify the inconsistencies. 

Linking performance with budgets

Programme

2017/18

Budget
Actual

expenditure
(Over)/under 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000
Finance, IT and Facilities 11 541 13 959 (2 418)

OCEO 4 380 4 336 44

TOTAL 15 921 18 295 (2 374)

3.2  Programme 2: Human Resources Management 

Programme purpose
To create a world-class performance culture that establishes Productivity SA as the employer of 
choice, where the best talent will be attracted, managed, developed and retained.

Main activities
• Talent management; 

• Climate enhancement and culture and values; 

• Performance management;

• Learning and growth; and

• Leadership.

Objectives of the programme
• Talent management: To develop a pool of skilled and competent potential leaders that will 

drive the organisation’s strategic objectives.

• Climate enhancement and culture and values: To define the desired culture, values and 
associated behaviours to support a proposed performance driven culture. 

• Performance management: To review and re-design the Performance Management System 
to reward and recognise performance excellence and cascade strategic priorities and goals 
to programmes and individual key performance indicators. 

• Learning and Growth: To have competent and skilled employees that will support and 
implement organisational strategy.

• Leadership: To have competent and skilled leaders that will drive organisational strategy.
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Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements

Strategic Objective 1: Strengthen the institutional capacity of Productivity SA to deliver on its mandate and be 
financially sustainable

Key performance 
indicators

Actual 
achievement 

2016/17
Planned target

2017/18
Actual achievement

2017/18

Deviation 
from planned 

target to actual 
achievement for 

2017/18
Comment on 

deviations
Percentage 
achievement on the 
implementation of 
organisational training 
plan

New indicator 80% Completion 
of Annual Training 
Plan

88% 8% Implemented 
additional training 
as per the business 
requirements.

Number of review 
reports on the 
implementation of 
the Performance 
Management System 

New indicator 2 Performance 
Management 
Reports

2 Performance 
Management Reports

0 N/a

Turnaround time to fill 
positions

New indicator Within 4 months 
of vacancy being 
advertised

Average 2 months Average 2 months Certain positions 
were filled 
internally which 
reduced the 
turnaround time.

Number of Human 
Resources policies 
designed or reviewed 

New indicator 4 Policies 0 (4) Human Resource 
Management 
experienced staff 
shortages.

Climate Team 
Development Charters 
in place

New indicator 1 Climate survey Climate survey not 
conducted

100% deviation Climate survey 
suspended until 
organisational 
funding challenges 
have been resolved.

How the performance for programmes has contributed to 
the achievement of the public entity’s strategic outcomes 
orientated goals 
To create a world-class performance culture that establishes Productivity SA as the employer of 
choice, where the best talent will be attracted, managed, developed and retained.

Strategy to overcome areas of under-performance
Objective Performance indicator Strategy to address under-performance

Climate Enhancement and Culture 
and Values

Climate Team Development Charters 
in place

Climate survey suspended until organisational funding 
challenges have been resolved.

Linking performance with budgets

Programme

2017/18 2016/17

Budget
Actual

Expenditure
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure Budget

Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Talent Management - - - 20 7 13

Training and 
Development 770 538 232 530 59 471

TOTAL 770 538 232 550 66 484
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3.3 Programme 3: Marketing and Communications

Programme purpose 
Drive the productivity movement by promoting a culture of productivity in the workplace and in 
society in general.

Sub-programmes/main activities
• Productivity Awards;

• Stakeholder Management;

• Awareness Workshops;

• Public Relations; and

• Publications.

Objectives of the Programme
• To lead, inform and galvanise South Africans into higher levels of productivity by promoting 

the concept of productivity and competitiveness through various media: print, broadcast 
(radio and TV) and online.

• To build and strengthen stakeholder relations through:

- Sustaining relations between government, business and labour;

- Being a major role player in productivity-related forums, i.e. Manufacturing Indaba, Buy 
Local Summit; and

- Embarking on sustainable media partnerships, i.e. The Times Media sponsorship.

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements

Strategic objective 5: Promote social dialogue and a culture of productivity and competitiveness in the workplace 
and community life

Performance 
indicator

Actual 
achievement 

2016/17
Planned target

2017/18

Actual 
achievement

2017/18

Deviation 
from planned 

target to actual 
achievement 
for 2017/18 Comment on deviation

Communication and 
marketing strategy 
developed and 
implemented

New indicator Marketing and 
communication 
strategy 
approved

Strategy 
approved

0 N/a

Number of productivity 
awards held

8 10 8 (2) Free State and Northern 
Cape not realised due to 
difficulties in finalising 
the partnerships in those 
provinces as well as resource 
shortage.

Number of productivity 
and competitiveness 
seminars held

New indicator 4 4 0 N/a

Number of stakeholders 
and strategic partners 
established and 
maintained

New indicator 9 9 0 N/a

Number of educational 
and awareness 
campaigns conducted

New indicator 4 4 0 N/a
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How the performance for programmes has contributed to the 
achievement of the public entity’s strategic outcomes orientated 
goals
Driving the productivity movement by promoting a culture of productivity in the workplace and 
in society in general.

Strategy to overcome areas of under-performance
Objective Performance indicator Strategy to address under-performance

Productivity Awards Number of productivity awards held Discussions are underway with HODs in the Free State and 
Northern Cape to forge the strategic relationships with the 
two province by quarter 2 of 2018/19.

Linking performance with budgets 

Programme

2017/18 2016/17

Budget
R’000

Actual
expenditure

R’000

(Over)/under 
expenditure

R’000
Budget
R’000

Actual
expenditure

R’000

(Over)/under 
expenditure

R’000
Marketing and 
Communications 11 842 8 871 2 971 10 590 9 369 1 221

TOTAL 11 842 8 871 2 971 10 590 9 369 1 221

3.4 Programme 4: Productivity Organisational   
  Solutions

Programme purpose
Enterprise development and productivity training programmes to enhance the appropriate capacities 
of Small and Medium Enterprises and cooperatives to adopt world-class productivity enhancement 
best practices, with a focus on products, processes and people.

Sub-programmes
• Assessment Centre;

• Education and Training;

• Small Enterprise Development; and

• Productivity Improvement Projects. 

Objectives of the programme
• To provide productivity training to intermediaries such as Educators, Skills Development Facilitators 

(SDFs) and ETD service providers to leverage our reach to organisations and communities.

• To conduct direct training for managers, workers and emerging entrepreneurs in order to 
foster continuous performance improvement in their workplaces.

• To implement productivity improvement projects in government departments to improve 
efficiency and productivity.

• To achieve full accreditation and Education Training Quality Assurance (ETQA) status for 
accreditation of service providers linked to Productivity SA.

• To develop assessment methodologies and instruments to establish performance levels of 
organisations, identify constraints that hamper growth and performance and assist with the 
compilation of action plans and work plans to resolve the identified constraints.
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Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements

Strategic Objective 2: Provide support to programmes aimed at sustainable employment and income growth

Key performance 
indicators

Actual 
achievement 

2016/17

Planned 
target

2017/18

Actual 
achievement

2017/18

Deviation 
from planned 

target to 
actual 

achievement 
for 2017/18

Comment on 
deviations

Number of emerging 
entrepreneurs trained 

5 527 5 500 5 523 23 Over subscription to 
training event in the 
final quarter. 

Strategic objective 4: contribute to employment and income growth through research, information generation and 
dissemination 

Number of productivity 
modules NQF accredited 
(tools & techniques)

New indicator 4 2 (2) Productivity SA 
completed all what 
was necessary on the 
two modules, waiting 
for accreditation date 
which we have no 
control over. 

Strategic objective 5: Promote social dialogue and a culture of productivity and competitiveness in the workplace
and community life

Number of productivity 
champions, Education, 
Training and Skills 
Development Facilitators 
(ETDs) and beneficiaries 
trained

New indicator 200 327 127 More Champions 
were trained due to 
SLA with Turnaround 
Solutions Programme 
and additional 
strategic partnerships 
established in 2017.

How the performance for programmes has contributed 
to the achievement of the public entity’s strategic 
outcomes-orientated goals
A total of 5 850 beneficiaries were capacitated in 2017/18 on productivity-related concepts. Productivity 
Organisational Solutions provides productivity awareness and business improvement workshops to 
SMEs in order to contribute to sustainable employment creation and improve productivity within 
the industry. These workshops are aimed at cultivating a productivity mind-set and behaviour 
among cooperatives and emerging entrepreneurs.

Linking performance with budgets

 
Programme

2017/18 2016/17

Budget
 R’000

Actual
expenditure

 R’000

(Over)/under 
expenditure

R’000
Budget
 R’000

Actual
expenditure

R’000 

(Over)/under 
expenditure

R’000
Productivity 
Organisation 
Solutions  11 211 11 401 (190) 9 489 8 663 826

TOTAL 11 211 11 401 (190) 9 489 8 663 826



Productivity SA 29  

3.5   Programme 5: Value Chain Competitiveness

Programme purpose
To promote employment, growth and workplace productivity; and provide cutting-edge productivity 
related research, statistics and innovative solutions to improve the productive and competitiveness 
of the economy and industry.

Sub-programmes
• Research, Innovation and Knowledge Management; and 

• Workplace Challenge Programme.

Objectives of the programme
• The Research unit: To undertake research through generating information and knowledge 

which influences policy debates and decision-making as well as supporting industrial policy 
implementation. 

• The Statistics unit: To collect and collate productivity related statistics which presents a 
comprehensive overview of recent and long-term trends on productivity levels and growth 
in South Africa. 

• Knowledge and Innovation Management unit (KIM): To develop and maintain a data-
base of productivity improvement and competitiveness system and tools, and measures as 
well as evaluating the efficacy thereof in the workplace and industry.

• Workplace Challenge: Improvement of the productivity and competitiveness of enterprises, and 
to increase the competitiveness and therefore employment in the previously underdeveloped 
regions of the country.

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements

Research, Innovation and Knowledge Management

Strategic Objective 2: Provide support to programmes aimed at sustainable employment and income growth 

Key performance 
indicators

Actual 
achievement 

2016/17

Planned 
target

2017/18

Actual 
achievement

2017/18

Deviation 
from planned 

target to actual 
achievement 
for 2017/18 Comment on deviations

Implement the 
Integrated Monitoring 
and Evaluation (M&E) 
System implemented in 
participating companies

New indicator Develop 
and pilot an 
integrated tool/
M&E System 
that will be 
implemented 
in participating 
enterprises/
industries

An integrated 
tool/M&E 
System 
that will be 
implemented 
in participating 
enterprises/
industries was 
developed and 
piloted 

0 N/a

Number of research 
reports on priority 
sectors produced and 
disseminated

6 4 2 (2) Lack of leadership and 
management control by 
the responsible Executive 
Manager.

Number of statistical 
reports on productivity 
and competitiveness 
published

New indicator 2 3 1 The long outstanding 
2014 and 2015 annual 
statistics reports were only 
published in this Financial 
Year.

Web-based solutions 
developed and rolled out

New indicator Develop an 
online resource 
centre and pilot

Web-based 
solutions 
developed and 
rolled out

0 N/a



Annual Report 2017/1830  

Workplace Challenge Programme

Strategic Objective 2: Provide support to programmes aimed at sustainable employment and income growth 

Key performance 
indicators

Actual 
achievement 

2016/17
Planned target

2017/18

Actual 
achievement

2017/18

Deviation 
from planned 

target to actual 
achievement for 

2017/18
Comment on 

deviations
Number of 
productivity 
consultants and 
practitioners 
accredited as Kaizen 
practitioners

New indicator Accredited 
programme in 
place

Accredited 
programme not 
in place

100% Deviation Lack of leadership and 
management control 
by the responsible 
Executive Manager.

Number of companies 
in industry sectors 
including SEZs and 
industrial parks 
supported through 
productivity and 
competitiveness 
enhancement 
programmes

New indicator 200 215 15 The partnerships with 
LEDET and SEDA (NW) 
have contributed 
magnificently 
in increasing 
the demand for 
implementation of 
Kaizen project.

Number of black 
industrialists 
supported through 
productivity and 
competitiveness 
enhancement 
programmes

New indicator 30 30 0 N/a

Strategic objective 5: Promote social dialogue and a culture of productivity and competitiveness in the workplace 
and community life

Number of workplace 
forums/capacity 
building workshops

New indicator 30 32 2 The partnerships with 
LEDET and SEDA (NW) 
have contributed 
magnificently in 
increasing the demand 
for implementation of 
Kaizen project.

How the performance for programmes has contributed to the 
achievement of the public entity’s strategic outcomes-orientated 
goals
Productivity SA provides cutting-edge productivity related research, statistics and innovative solutions 
to improve the productivity and competitiveness of the economy and industry.

The Workplace Challenge is aimed at helping primarily manufacturing companies in the growth 
phase of the business cycle to become more productive through the adoption of best operating 
practice while also creating employment.

Strategy to overcome areas of under-performance
Objectives Performance indicator Strategy to address under-performance

Contribute to employment and 
income growth through research, 
information generation and 
dissemination

Number of research reports on 
priority sectors produced and 
disseminated

Enhance the capacity of Senior Managers to deliver on 
a more focussed research agenda.

Strengthen the institutional capacity 
of Productivity SA to deliver on 
its mandate and be financially 
sustainable

Number of Productivity consultants 
and practitioners accredited as 
Kaizen practitioners

Streamline the processes within the relevant programmes 
to realise the target.

Finalise the agreements with JICA and NEPAD towards 
development of accreditation of the programme. 
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Changes to planned targets
There was misalignment between the APP targets and Funding Agreements targets with the dti 
for the Workplace Challenge Programme. The 2017/18 APP was adjusted and approved by the 
Minister of Labour to rectify the inconsistencies. 

The annual targets as agreed to between Productivity SA and the dti and captured in the Memorandum 
of Agreement (MoA) and the Funding Agreement between Productivity SA and the dti; (indicator 
no. 13: Number of Black industrialists supported through Productivity and competitiveness enhancement 
programmes from 9 to 30).

Linking performance with budgets

 
Programme

2017/18 2016/17

Budget
R’000

Actual
expenditure 

R’000

(Over)/under 
expenditure

R’000
Budget
R’000

Actual
expenditure

R’000

(Over)/under 
expenditure

R’000
Research 
Development 10 166 10 775 (609) 12 655 9 286 3 369

Workplace 
Challenge 18 666 16 475 2 191 23 975 17 852 6 123

TOTAL 28 832 27 250 1 582 36 630 27 138 9 492

3.6 Programme 6: Turnaround Solutions

Programme purpose
The Declaration of the Presidential Jobs summit (October, 1998) outlined the Turnaround Solutions 
Programme that aims to prevent job losses or a decline in employment. The Turnaround Solutions 
Programme is funded by the Unemployment Insurance Fund in response to section 7 of the 
Employment Services Act, No. 4 of 2014. 

Objectives of the programme
The programme provides technical support to companies facing financial and operational distress 
with the aim to:

• Save jobs and create conditions conducive for job retention and creation.

• Assist in the reduction of unemployment. The drive is to assist businesses to improve their 
efficiencies and productivity that promotes its sustainability and stay competitive.

• Lessening the social and economic impact on individuals, companies, regions and the national 
economy.

• Sustain existing jobs as a proactive solution; Productivity SA assists in the identifying of 
inefficiencies and solutions to ensure improved organisational efficiencies and job retention.

• Productivity SA capacitates Future Forums (workplace forums) to establish early warning 
systems (EWS) so as to manage enterprise problems proactively.

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements

Strategic objective 3: Provide support to companies facing economic distress to retain jobs

Key performance 
indicators

Actual 
achievement 

2016/17

Planned 
target

2017/18

Actual 
achievement

2017/18

Deviation 
from planned 

target to actual 
achievement for 

2017/18 Comment on deviations
Number of 
companies facing 
economic distress 
supported through 
Turnaround Strategies 
to retain jobs 
(establish future 
forums)

53 150 71 (79) Due to the unavailability of 
funding, the Board took a 
decision to suspend the TAS 
programme until further 
funding is provided.
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Strategic objective 3: Provide support to companies facing economic distress to retain jobs

Key performance 
indicators

Actual 
achievement 

2016/17

Planned 
target

2017/18

Actual 
achievement

2017/18

Deviation 
from planned 

target to actual 
achievement for 

2017/18 Comment on deviations
Number of jobs saved 
in companies facing 
economic distress 

4 760 7 500 8 504 1 004 The plan was to recruit 150 
companies at an average size 
of 50 employees, however 
71 companies at an average 
size of 120 employees were 
recruited to implement the TAS 
programme.

How the performance for programmes has contributed 
to the achievement of the public entity’s strategic 
outcomes-orientated goals
The programme provided turnaround strategies to enhance the productivity and operational efficiency 
of organisations and companies facing economic distress (financial and operational difficulties) to 
improve their productivity and competitiveness, thereby financial viability and job security. 

Comment on all deviations
The TAS Programme failed to meet the annual targets as per the APP due to funding not being 
received in full and on time from the UIF. Only R19 680 000 of the R78 720 000 grant was transferred 
and this was only transferred in June 2017 (3 months into the Financial Year).

Strategy to overcome areas of under-performance
Objectives Performance indicator Strategy to address under-performance

Provide support to companies 
facing economic distress to 
retain jobs

Number of companies facing economic distress 
supported through turnaround strategies to 
retain jobs (establish future forums)

The Productivity SA Board took a decision to suspend 
the TAS Programme until further funding is provided. 
The funding issue has been addressed to the Board, 
DG and Minister of Labour.

Changes to planned targets
It was anticipated that the 2017/18 UIF Funding Agreement would include supporting retrenched 
workers/vulnerable workers through micro-enterprise development and self-employment support 
programmes, however that was not realised, therefore making it impossible to achieve this target. 
The timing was not convenient to carry out this target, given the challenges that existed in the 
Turnaround Solutions Programme, hence great focus was given to implementation of turnaround 
strategies to prevent job losses or minimise the retrenchments of workers. 

The 2017/18 APP was adjusted and approved by the Minister of Labour to remove the indicator 
on: ‘Number of companies (retrenched workers/vulnerable workers) supported through micro-
enterprise development and self-employment support programmes.’

Linking performance with budgets

2017/18 2016/17

Programme
Budget
R’000

Actual
expenditure

R’000

(Over)/under 
expenditure

R’000
Budget
R’000

Actual
expenditure

R’000

(Over)/under 
expenditure

R’000
Turnaround 
Solutions 78 720 33 622 45 098 97 807 32 560 65 247

TOTAL 78 720 33 622 45 098 97 807 32 560 65 247
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4. Revenue Collection
2017/18 2016/17

Sources of 
revenue

Estimate
R’000

Actual
amount 

collected
R’000

(Over)/under 
collection

R’000
Estimate

R’000

Actual
amount 

collected
R’000

(Over)/under 
collection

R’000
Transfers and 
subsidies
Department of 
Labour 50 341 60 064 9 723 47 944 59 057 11 113

Unemployment 
Insurance Fund 78 720 33 622 (45 098) 97 807 19 813 (77 994)

Department of 
Trade and Industry 8 949 8 949 - 8 523 8 523 -

LEDET 350 350 - 300 300 -

Other income
Sales of goods and 
services, interest 
and other income 21 767 6 019 (15 748) 37 088 9 213 (27 875)

TOTAL 160 127 109 004 (51 123) 191 662 96 906 (94 756)

The bulk of revenue collection activities relate to transfers by way of grants from three main sources 
namely DoL, UIF and the dti. The main and guaranteed source is from the DoL and amounted to 
R60.064 million, which includes an additional R9.723 million bailout received in March 2018. Transfers 
and grants account for 94% of total funding whilst the balance is made up by other income as well 
as a subsidy received from LEDET.

Transfers/grants have, to a great extent, been received on time via the SLAs and MoUs as agreed 
with funders. UIF only transferred the first quarter tranche of R19.680 million of the total allocated 
funding of R78.720 million and this was transferred late in June 2017 instead of April 2017. The 
issue of failure by the UIF to comply with the funding agreement by failing tranches quarterly has 
been escalated to the Minister.

The result of reduced funding resulted in Productivity SA suspending the Turnaround Solutions 
Programme in the beginning of 2018 until funding issues are resolved.

4.1 Capital investment 
During the Financial Year ending 31 March 2018, capital expenditure was limited to replacement 
of outdated hardware within the organisation. 

Looking forward to the Financial Year ending 2019, IT is working at consolidating its infrastructure 
and investing in cloud-based services. Limitations in terms of capital budgets will mean that IT’s core 
focus will be diverted into aligning the IT strategy with that of the Productivity SA’s new business 
model. An assessment of the ‘as-is’ state of IT and the current systems has allowed the team to 
recognise the gaps so as to fast-track implementation to the ‘to-be’ state. This will include integration 
of supporting modules to the current ERP (Enterprise Resource Plan). By 2019 the IT department will 
have a primary strategy to implement an integrated, transactional system which will support and 
expand the business, thus allowing for national growth and real-time data inputs and reporting. 

For details as to how asset holdings have changed over the period under review, including information 
on disposals, scrapping and loss due to theft, refer to note 3 in the Financial Statements.

To comply with the requirements of the PFMA and GRAP, measures were taken to ensure that the 
public entity’s asset register remained up to date during the period under review.  These included 
maintaining an up to date asset register with asset descriptions, codes for identification purposes and 
a record of all acquisitions, movements and disposals.  Further, a physical asset count is performed 
every quarter.  The decisions as to which assets to dispose of and scrap lie with the asset disposal 
committee.  All movements in assets are authorised by a responsible official of Productivity SA.

Assets comprise mainly computers, furniture and a motor vehicle. 95% of these are in good condition. 
Should certain assets be identified as not fit and proper for the entity’s usage, they are disposed of 
via donations or outright sale and replaced. 

There were no major maintenance projects that have been undertaken during the period under review. 



PART C
GOVERNANCE
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1. Introduction
Corporate governance embodies processes and systems through which public entities are directed, 
controlled and held to account. In addition to legislative requirements based on a public entity’s 
enabling legislation, and the Companies Act, corporate governance with regards to public entities 
is applied through the precepts of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and run in tandem 
with the principles contained in the King Code of Governance Principles and the King Report on 
Corporate Governance (King IV).

Parliament, the executive authority and the Accounting Authority of the public entity are responsible 
for corporate governance.

2. Portfolio Committees 
Productivity SA along with its sister entities that report to the Department of Labour (DoL) report 
to the Portfolio Committee on Labour. 

Productivity SA attended meetings with Portfolio Committee on Labour on the following dates:

• 4 May 2017 – Budget Review 2017;

• 28 June 2017 – Briefing on the 2016/17 Quarterly Performance (QPR 3 & 4);

• 13 September 2017 – Briefing on the Annual Reports 2016/17;

• 18 October 2017 – Briefing on the first Quarterly Performance Report (QPR 1);

• 29 November 2017 – Briefing on the first Quarterly Performance Report (QPR 2); and

• 14 February 2018 – Briefing on the first Quarterly Performance Report (QPR3).

The Portfolio Committee noted Productivity SA’s performance, however the Committee raised 
concern with regards to the lack of adequate funding.

3. Executive Authority
Productivity SA regulatory reports including Annual Performance Plan 2017/18 and the revised 
Strategic Plan 2014/15 - 2019/20 were submitted to the Department of Labour by specified dates 
as stated in the Memorandum of Agreement and Drawdown Agreement between Productivity 
SA and Department of Labour. 

No significant issues relating to the APP and the Strategic Plan were raised by DoL.

4. The Accounting Authority/  
  Board 
The importance and purpose of the Board
The Board members serve as the Accounting Authority of Productivity SA. The duties of the Board 
are captured in the Productivity SA Constitution and outlined in the requirements of the Public 
Finance Management Act (PFMA), Act No. 1 of 1999, as amended by Act No. 29 of 1999. 

The Board is responsible and accountable for the public 
entity’s performance and strategic direction 
The Board as the Accounting Authority of Productivity SA meets at least four (4) times a year. The 
Board is responsible and accountable for the public entity’s performance and strategic direction. 

The Board sets the vision and mission of Productivity SA and is responsible for the overall strategic 
direction, performance and control of the entity in executing its mandate as per the Employment 
Services Act, No. 4 of 2014.
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The role of the Board is as follows:
• Determine the strategic direction of Productivity SA and oversee the performance of the 

organisation in executing its mandate. 

• Formulate the general policy. 

• Appoint a Chief Executive Officer (CEO) on terms stipulated in the Constitution and subject 
to the Labour Relations Act (LRA) and other relevant legislations. 

• Determine the remuneration terms and conditions of the employment of the CEO and other 
employees. 

• Approve annual budgets, business plans and financial strategy of Productivity SA. 

• Appoint committees and sub-committees as it may deem necessary to perform its duties.

Constitution 
The Board of Productivity SA is fully constituted with seven members as required in terms of section 
33 of the Employment Services Act, No. 4 of 2014. The Board fully adheres to the guidelines of the 
Constitution and further committed to the objectives of the King IV Report on corporate governance 
and meeting full requirements of the Public Finance Management Act. 

Composition of the Board 

Name

Designation 
(in terms of 
the public 

entity 
board 

structure)
Date 

appointed
Date 

resigned Qualifications
Area of 

expertise
Board

directorships

Other 
committees 

or task 
teams 

No. of 
meetings 
attended

Mthunzi 
Mdwaba

Non-
Executive 
Chairman

2 Feb 2015 Current Bachelor 
of Arts and 
Bachelor of 
Laws

Business Productivity 
SA

Board 6

Nico 
Vermeulen

Non-
Executive

9 Dec 2014 Current Bachelor of 
Commerce 
Honours and 
Bachelor of 
Social Science

Business Productivity 
SA

Board/Audit 
and Risk 
Committee

12

Monga 
Phaladi

Non-
Executive

9 Dec 2014 Current Diploma 
in Business 
Management 

Business Productivity 
SA

Board/
HR and R 
Committee

8

Esther 
Tloane

Non-
Executive

9 Dec 2014 Current Bachelor of 
Arts (Social 
work), Bachelor 
of Arts 
(Psychology)

Government Productivity 
SA

Board/
HR and R 
Committee

10

Jocelyn 
Vass

Non-
Executive

9 Dec 2014 Current MA (ECON) 
Labour Studies

Government Productivity 
SA

Board/Audit 
and Risk 
Committee

12

Leela 
Reddy

Non-
Executive

9 Dec 2014 Current Matric Labour Productivity 
SA

Board/Audit 
and Risk 
Committee

9

Noel 
Mbongwe

Non-
Executive

9 Dec 2014 Current Matric Labour Productivity 
SA

Board/
HR and R 
Committee 10
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Committees 
Committee No. of meetings held No. of members Name of members

Audit and Risk Committee 6 4 Mr Y Gordhan 
Mr N Vermeulen
Ms L Reddy
Ms J Vass 

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee 4 3 Mr N Mbongwe
Ms M Phaladi
Ms E Tloane

Remuneration of Board members
The Board members are remunerated for attendance as per National Treasury guidelines.

Those members that are not remunerated:

• Rates will be reviewed annually in line with Productivity SA as guided by the National Treasury.

Other expenses e.g. travel, reimbursed by the public entity:

• Travel and accommodation to functions or meetings on behalf of Productivity SA is incurred 
by Productivity SA. 

Non-Executive Chairman of the Board    R2 404.55 per meeting

Independent Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee  R3 879.00 per meeting

Non-Executive Board/Alternate/Co-opted members  R1 454.20 per meeting

Name Remuneration for attendance Total
Mthunzi Mdwaba R2 405  R25 412 

Nico Vermeulen R1 454  R20 238 

Monga Phaladi R1 454  R17 730 

Leela Reddy R1 454  R10 179 

Noel Mbongwe R1 454  R22 044 

Yaswant Gordhan R3 879  R52 146 

TOTAL  R147 749 

5. Risk Management
Productivity SA outsources risk management to its internal auditors, KPMG.

Senior management, with the assistance of the outsourced internal audit function is committed 
to assessing, on an ongoing basis, the major operational, business and fraud related risks that 
Productivity SA faces. Internal Audit plans are drawn up and progress is monitored against these 
plans continually. A risk management workshop was facilitated by KPMG where senior management 
revisited the risks facing Productivity SA.

The Audit and Risk Committee evaluates reports prepared by KPMG to identify areas where further 
management’s attention may be required.

6. Internal Control Unit
Internal control is evaluated in a combined effort by management, internal audit and external audit. 
The findings on internal controls by internal audit and external audit are reported to the Audit and 
Risk Committee and actions to clear them are monitored.
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For the year under review, KPMG carried out the annual internal audit plan as approved by the Audit 
and Risk Committee which included the following internal audit work: 

•  Performance Information Review;

•  APP Review;

•  Financial Management Review;

•  TAS Review; and

•  Strategic Risk Assessment.

KPMG’s findings have been reported to the Audit and Risk Committee and communicated to 
management, who have adequately addressed them.

While periodic evaluations by management and independent reviews by internal and external 
auditors identified areas of further improvement management is satisfied that internal controls 
implemented and relied on continued to provide reasonable assurance regarding financial and 
performance management and compliance with Productivity SA policies and procures as well as 
legislation.

7. Internal Audit and Audit    
  Committee
KPMG, an outsourced firm responsible for Productivity SA’s internal audit function, provides an 
independent appraisal function that is designed to examine and evaluate Productivity SA’s internal 
controls. In particular, KPMG is charged with the responsibility of examining and evaluating the 
effectiveness of Productivity SA’s operational activities, the attendant business risks and the system 
of internal, operational and financial controls.

Any major weaknesses detected are brought to the attention of the Audit and Risk Committee, 
the external auditors and members of management for their consideration and remedial action. 
KPMG meets with the external auditors on a regular basis and discusses plans and results in respect 
of the audits carried out during the year. The committee meets periodically with management, 
external auditors and internal auditors, and it also meets separately with external and internal 
auditors when necessary.

The Audit and Risk Committee has a written charter approved by the Board of Directors. The 
committee does not have any operational or executive responsibilities. Its objectives are:

• Establishing a channel of communication between the Board of Directors, management, 
external auditors and internal auditors;

• Evaluating whether management creates and maintains an effective control environment to 
safeguard Productivity SA’s assets, and that management demonstrates the necessary respect 
for the entity’s internal control structure; 

• Reviewing the scope and outcome of audits. This review includes an assessment of the 
effectiveness of the annual statutory audit and ensuring that sufficient emphasis is placed on 
issues which in the opinion of the committee, management or the auditors deserve special 
attention;

• Ensuring that the Board of Directors makes informed decisions and is aware of the implications 
of these decisions on accounting policies, practices and disclosure; and

• Safeguarding the Directors’ liability by informing the Board of Directors about issues that impact 
on the business and the status of financial reporting.
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The tabled below discloses relevant information on the audit committee members.

Name Qualifications
Internal or 

external
Date 

appointed
Date 

resigned

No. of 
meetings 
attended

Mr Y Gordhan CA(SA) and Master of Science (Bus Admin) External 1 July 2016 Current 6

Mr N Vermeulen Bachelor of Commerce Honours, Bachelor of Social Science External 9 Dec 2014 Current 6

Ms L Reddy Matric External 9 Dec 2014 Current 4

Ms J Vass MA (ECON) Labour Studies External 9 Dec 2014 Current 5

8. Compliance with Laws and   
  Regulations
Productivity SA regularly conducts an exercise where it commissions an independent firm of 
attorneys to evaluate and advise it on the compliance with all relevant legislation that it would be 
required to abide by. In the 2017/18 Financial Year, KPMG conducted a review of compliance with 
all Treasury prescripts.

The overarching principle of Productivity SA is that it subscribes to a code of ethics and endeavours 
to act with honesty, responsibility and integrity to its stakeholders.

9. Fraud and Corruption 
Management has developed a multi-pronged plan to address fraud and corruption. Firstly, the 
possible risks that could prevent the entity from achieving its objectives were identified along 
with what could go wrong. From this exercise a fraud and risk checklist was developed to ensure 
that all bases are covered.

Awareness was created via presentations to staff on a quarterly basis. Staff members are aware of 
the processes and procedures to be followed should they suspect or have evidence that fraud and 
corruption is taking place. A fraud hotline was sought from DoL as Productivity SA is a too small 
entity to warrant having its own dedicated hotline.

The emerging risks mentioned above are reported on quarterly at the Audit and Risk Committee 
meeting and monthly at the Executive Committee meeting. The combination of management efforts, 
internal audit as well as external audit in creating awareness as well as devising steps to detect 
and prevent fraud and corruption, is believed to be sufficient to adequately address this subject.

In light of the above, management are continuously investigating allegations including, where 
warranted, forensic investigations of matters that have come to their attention.

10.  Minimising Conflict of Interest
Productivity SA management views conflict of interest in supply management in a serious light. To 
this end, the standard contract that Productivity SA would sign with service providers contains a 
water-tight clause on conflict of interest and provides for possible prosecution should it be found 
that an employee or a service provider violated the provisions of this clause.

Furthermore, Productivity SA strives to comply with the PFMA on the sourcing of goods and services 
which prescribes the three levels i.e. quotations, a signed contract and open tender, should certain 
limits be reached.

All employees of the entity signed the declaration of interest when they joined the entity. It is also 
a standard item on the agenda of all committee meetings that members declare their interest to 
avoid conflict.

11.  Code of Conduct 
Productivity SA subscribes to a code of ethics and endeavours to act with honesty, responsibility 
and integrity to its stakeholders. Should this code be breached, the Productivity SA Constitution 
prescribes that the relevant breach be addressed according to the policy that covers it.
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12.  Health Safety and     
   Environmental Issues
Although the entity was observing some health and safety standards, in October 2012, Productivity 
SA engaged the services of an expert in the establishment of Occupational Health Safety (OHS) 
practices to formalise the process. The aim was to ensure compliance of Productivity SA, its staff 
and contractors to the principles of OHS.

The OHS process entails the following:

1. Inspections by means of audits for any physical hazards, hygiene stress factors, environmental 
concerns and general liability risk issues. Informing all staff of their rights and responsibilities 
in terms of the OHS and Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases Acts.

2. Establish an OHS Committee.

3. Appoint and coach Health and Safety Representatives.

4. Establish an effective evacuation instruction.

The basis of OHS in Productivity SA revolves around five main areas namely: the premises, regulation 
of the facilities, stacking and storage, fire protection and electrical machinery. These are the main 
areas whereby audits are conducted for the facilities.

On top of that Productivity SA is then audited on the administrative function whereby compliance 
is measured on reporting and appointment of representatives.

An initial audit indicated a number of low to medium risk items, which were immediately addressed. 
Based on the initial audit findings the compliance rating was very low due to the administrative 
structures not being implemented as yet. This administrative process was initiated in October 2012 
whereby the management structures and appointment of key Health and Safety Representatives began.

13.  Audit and Risk Committee   
  (ARC) Report
The ARC is pleased to present its report for the Financial Year ended 31 March 2018.

Audit and Risk Committee members and members’ 
attendance
The Audit and Risk Committee (hereafter referred as the ARC) consists of the members listed 
hereunder and should meet at least four times per annum, as per approved terms of reference. 

During the current year, six meetings were scheduled and held. The ARC confirms that it has 
discharged its responsibility in terms of Productivity SA Audit and Risk Committee Charter.

Name

Audit and Risk Committee

26/04/2017 23/05/2017 20/07/2017 5/10/2017 26/10/2017 29/01/2018

Mr Y Gordhan √ √ √ √ √ √

Mr N Vermeulen √ √ √ √ √ √

Ms L Reddy A √ √ A √ √

Ms J Vass √ √ √ √ A √

√= Present  A = Apology  

The Audit and Risk Committee responsibility
The ARC reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 51(1) (a) (ii) of the 
Public Finance Management Act of 1999 and Treasury Regulations 27.1. The ARC also reports that it has 
adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its Audit and Risk Committee Charter, has regulated 
its affairs in compliance with this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein.
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Effectiveness of internal control
The ARC reviewed the findings by the internal auditors which were based on the risk assessment 
conducted and revealed certain weaknesses, which were raised with management. We are satisfied 
with the additional controls that management have implemented in addressing these internal 
audit findings.

Internal audit
KPMG provided the internal audit services for the Financial Year 2017/18 and provided the following 
reports:

• Performance Information Review;

• APP Review;

• Financial Management Review;

• TAS Review; and

• Strategic Risk Assessment.

From these internal audit reports and those from the external auditor, the ARC has recommended 
improvements in the internal control environment. Management has committed to address these 
and the ARC will continue to monitor such remedial action in the ensuing year. 

In-year management and monthly/quarterly report
The public entity has submitted monthly and quarterly reports to the Executive Authority.

Evaluation of Audited Annual Financial Statements
We have reviewed the audited Annual Financial Statements and we are satisfied that it conforms 
to the applicable and appropriate accounting standards. The ARC has:

• Reviewed and discussed the audited Annual Financial Statements to be included in the annual 
report with the Auditor and the Accounting Authority;

• Reviewed the Auditor’s management report and management ‘s response thereto;

• Reviewed the accounting policies and practices as reported in the entities’ Annual Financial 
Statements;

• Reviewed the entity’s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions;

• Reviewed the information in predetermined objectives included in the Annual Report;

• Reviewed material adjustments resulting from the audit;

• Reviewed the effectiveness and adequacy of the internal Audit function and adequacy of its 
annual work plan;

• Reviewed the results of the work performed by the internal audit and any significant investigation 
and management responses thereto;

• Reviewed the external auditors findings and reports submitted to management; and

• Reviewed the independence and objectivity of the external auditors.

The ARC recommended the audited Annual Financial Statements to the Board for approval and 
adoption.

Auditor’s Report
We have reviewed Productivity SA implementation plan for audit issues raised in the prior year and 
we are satisfied that the matters have been adequately resolved. The ARC concurs and accepts 
the conclusions of the Auditors on the Annual Financial Statements and is of the opinion that the 
audited Annual Financial Statements be accepted and read together with the report of the Auditors.

Yaswant Gordhan
Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee
Productivity SA
26 July 2018



PART D
HUMAN RESOURCES 
MANAGEMENT 
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1. Introduction 
Overview of Human Resources objectives
The vision and mission of the Human Resources Department is to create a world class performance 
culture that establishes Productivity SA as the employer of choice, where the best talent will be 
attracted, managed, developed and retained. This involves personnel sustainability in line with the 
Business Model, to ensure that employees can effectively and reliably perform as well as create a 
high performance organisational culture to drive the expanded legislative mandate of Productivity 
SA and organisational sustainability.

The Human Resources Department finalised the exercise regarding post-facto regularisation of 
the staff establishment in terms of the Employment Services Act, No. 4 of 2014. Memorandums 
were submitted to the Human Resource and Remuneration (HR and R) Committee, Audit and Risk 
Committee and the Board for approval. The staff establishment was approved based on 107 employees. 

During this period, key senior positions were permanently filled, including the appointment of 
the Executive Manager: Corporate Services (Finance Specialist), Financial Manager, Executive 
Manager: Turnaround Solutions and Portfolio Manager: Turnaround Solutions (KZN and CT). These 
appointments brought stability to the Corporate Services and Turnaround Solutions Programmes, 
as well as the organisation as a whole.

The organisation demonstrated its commitment to invest in high potential employees through 
the acting appointment of talent management candidates into key senior positions including the 
Acting Executive Manager: Value Chain Competitiveness and Acting Portfolio Manager: Turnaround 
Solutions KZN. These candidates have implemented the learning they gained during the talent 
development process and have made the organisation proud. Other acting appointments also 
took place during this period to bring stability to the respective programmes, including the Acting 
Senior Manager: Workplace Challenge, Acting Portfolio Manager: Turnaround Solutions Gauteng 
and Acting Financial Accountant. The employees have gained valuable exposure in leadership roles, 
thereby expanding the organisation’s pool of suitably qualified and experienced internal candidates 
to fill leadership positions that may arise. 

The Human Resources Headcount and Capability Framework was developed to ensure that the 
organisation has the correct skills set to deliver on its strategic mandate. The Capability Framework 
was partially developed based on two skills questionnaires that were designed and distributed 
to consulting employees and their managers. Business recommended training for consulting 
employees commenced in 2017/18 with the Understanding Data and Process Mapping training 
in Gauteng. Regional employees will be trained on Understanding Data and Process Mapping in 
2018/19. The Capability Framework will be finalised after the completion of the Organisational 
Review and Design Implementation Plan. 

The organisation hosted two interns from June 2017 within the KwaZulu-Natal Regional Office. The 
internship programme was funded by the ETDP SETA in partnership with the Durban University of 
Technology. The organisation is currently providing practical exposure to the interns in line with 
their academic qualifications. 

During this period, 88% of the Training Plan was implemented against an annual target of 80%. 
Training interventions included business model related training as well as Individual Development 
Plan training. The training interventions implemented have enhanced the skills of employees to deliver 
on the organisation’s strategic mandate in terms of the Employment Services Act, No. 4 of 2014. 

Management and organised labour reached a deadlock after a dispute was declared in respect of 
annual salary increases for 2017/18. The Commission for Conciliation, Mediation and Arbitration 
(CCMA) assisted the organisation with the salary negotiation process and three mediation sessions 
took place during July 2017. The Bargaining Forum reached an agreement regarding annual salary 
increases at the end of July 2017. The sequence was gap closure for affected employees based on 
the 2016/17 Equate salary scales followed by 6.3% salary increases across the board for eligible 
employees. The salary increases were processed during the August 2017 pay-run, backdated to 
April 2017. 

Resource challenges continued to plague the Human Resources Department during 2017/18, 
however the HR Coordinator was appointed on a fixed-term contract basis in August 2017 and was 
subsequently upgraded to a Senior Programme Administrator: HR position, whereby the incumbent 
was permanently appointed in December 2017. The HR Business Partner position was vacant for 
six months and a new HR Business Partner was appointed in January 2018. 
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Despite resource challenges, the Human Resources Department has achieved 80% of its 2017/18 
Annual Performance Plan target against the organisational target of 75%. The outstanding 20% was 
due to one indicator, the Climate Survey, not being conducted during Quarter 4 due to financial 
challenges that the organisation experienced. 

To drive the Business Model forward, a task team was established to review the current organisational 
structure and design a new organisational structure to meet the requirements of the Business Model 
in terms of the legislated mandate. The Executive Manager HR is the team leader and revenue 
generating programmes as well as organised labour are represented within the task team. During 
July and August 2017 the task team reviewed the current structure and determined that it is not 
appropriate as there is an unequal distribution of resources as well as an uneven provision of 
services to all provinces. The current structure has representation in Gauteng, KwaZulu-Natal and 
the Western Cape instead of a presence in all nine provinces. 

The organisation’s current constraints relate to the organisational capacity to deliver on the expanded 
legislative mandate, which is to promote employment growth and workplace productivity. The 
organisational re-design process aims to improve Productivity SA’s footprint and service delivery 
access points across the country, improve the leadership and management capacity within the 
Head Office to deliver on the mandate of Productivity SA, enhance Productivity SA’s Research and 
Knowledge Management capacity and secure funding to promote a culture of productivity in the 
workplace and in society in general. 

The Executive Manager: Value Chain Competitiveness and the Executive Manager: Marketing and 
Communications left the organisation in April 2018. This has created an opportunity to reassess the 
job profiles of these positions in line with the requirement of the new organisational structure design. 

The Human Resources Department is continuing with the investigation for pensioners’ post-retirement 
medical aid benefits as the organisation spent R3.286 million in respect of pensioners’ medical aid 
costs for 2017/18 and will be spending approximately R4.000 million during 2018/19. As per the 
Board Resolution in May 2017, the organisation obtained a legal opinion from the DoL, National 
Treasury as well as Cliffe Dekker Hofmeyr Attorneys. The Human Resources Department prepared a 
Condonation letter to National Treasury regarding past payments in respect of pensioners‘ medical 
aid and submitted it to the Board Chairman for approval. The letter was signed off by the Board 
Chairman and submitted to National Treasury in March 2018. The CFO’s Office has submitted a 
letter to the DoL from the CEO requesting financial assistance to fund R1.800 million in terms of 
payments over the next six months. The organisation is awaiting further correspondence from 
National Treasury and the DoL. 

The Human Resources strategic map is aligned to the overall organisational strategy and is depicted 
as follows:
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Human Resources priorities 
From this strategy map, the following Human Resources interventions have been identified as key 
priorities for this period:

• Organisational Design; 

• Employee Wellness; 

• Performance Management;

• Learning and Growth; and

• HR Capacity and Structure. 

Human Resources planning framework and strategies 
The Human Resources Department has developed a Headcount and Capability Framework to 
determine the skills, capabilities and experience of consulting employees to deliver on the strategic 
mandate and revised organisational structure. The first phase of the exercise has been completed 
based on the qualifications and experience of consulting employees. 

Business recommended training has been rolled-out and further Business Model training will take 
place during 2018/19, including Business Finance, Change Management, Kaizen and Six Sigma training. 

Employee Performance Management System 
The aim of the organisation’s Performance Management System is to improve organisational 
performance by linking Productivity SA’s value drivers to individual and team outputs, facilitate 
desired behaviour to support Productivity SA values and value drivers, and ensuring that managers 
are held accountable for the performance of their teams.

During the period under review, the organisation contracted its employees in May 2017 and has 
finalised Review 1 in October 2017 for the period April to September 2017. Performance Contracts 
and Reviews were submitted by 100% of employees. 

Review 2 for the period October 2017 to March 2018 will be finalised by 30 April 2018 and Performance 
Contracting for 2018/19 will be finalised by 31 May 2018. 

The Human Resources Department is currently finalising the review of the Performance Management 
Policy and will submit to the relevant committees for review. 

Employee Wellness Programme 
The Employee Wellness Programmes (I-CAS) has been highly utilised by employees. The organisation 
therefore renewed its contract with I-CAS for further two-years duration. The Employee Wellbeing 
Programme Policy was drafted by the Human Resources Department in March 2018 and will go 
through the internal policy approval process. One of the enhancements is an addition to the normal 
counselling services being offered by I-CAS. This involves consulting sessions with a doctor that 
specialises in musculoskeletal health. The service will assist employees to reduce neck or back 
pain, headaches, joint pain, sprains and strains, postural fatigue and other pains. The exercises that 
employees have been taught will take four minutes per day and there is a high success rate which 
reduces sick leave. Details were presented to employees at the June 2017 staff meeting and the 
Human Resources Department is monitoring sick leave utilisation levels to determine whether 
there has been a reduction due to the new service offering. 

The engagement rate for the period March 2017 to February 2018 was 49%, which is substantially 
higher than the industry average of 13.5%. The Employee Wellness Report reflected the following 
top three reasons for employee referrals and employees are being assisted regarding these issues:

• Musculoskeletal issues;

• Relationship issues; and

• Trauma.
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Due to the private and confidential nature of the agreement that I-CAS has with Productivity SA 
regarding its employees, the following interventions aided and assisted our employees in addressing 
the above issues, however, the exact nature of these interventions cannot be divulged: 

• Telephone counselling;

• Face-to-face counselling;

• Legal counselling; 

• Family care consultation; 

• Financial consultation; and 

• Medical advisory.

Human Resources policy development 
The Human Resources Department has planned to develop/review the following policies: 

• Training and Development Policy; 

• Performance Management Policy;

• Employee Wellbeing Programme Policy;

• Bereavement Policy; and 

• Code of Ethics Policy. 

These policies are subject to finalisation and will go through the internal policy approval process. 

Human Resources highlights 
The Human Resources Department’s highlights and challenges over this period were as follows: 

 Highlights Details 
1 Cost reduction The Human Resources Department has managed its costs effectively month and year 

to date reflecting a budget surplus of R1.992 million as at 31 March 2018. For the past 
six years the Human Resources Department has not contributed to the organisation’s 
deficit due to effective and efficient management of its budget and costs and has 
had an average surplus of R2.245 million over the past six years. 

2 Achievement of Annual Performance 
Plan

The Human Resources Department’s overall achievement for the 2017/18 Financial 
Year was 80%. Only one indicator had not been achieved, the implementation of the 
Climate Survey, due to organisational financial challenges. 

3 Recruitment turnaround time Turnaround time refers to the period taken to fill a vacancy from the date the vacancy 
is approved until the date the vacancy is filled. 17 positions were filled with an average 
turnaround time of two months against a target of four months. 

4 Employee Wellness Programme A new service offered by I-CAS was introduced to the organisation at the June 2017 
staff meeting. Employees are able to book musculoskeletal consultations with a 
doctor in order to improve their health and wellness and reduce sick leave due to 
neck or back pain. 

5 Performance Management The Human Resources Department manages the performance management process 
by providing guidance and timeframes to the organisation and constantly monitors 
and evaluates the Performance Management System to cascade strategic priorities 
and goals to programme/individual key performance indicators. Reviews are done 
twice yearly thus entrenching a performance driven culture. 100% of employees 
have completed Performance Contracts for 2017/18 and 100% of employees have 
completed Review 1 for 2017/18. 

6 Implementation of Training Plan 88% of the 2017/18 Training Plan was implemented against the annual target of 80%. 
88 delegates were trained during 2017/18. 
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Human Resources challenges 
Challenges Details 

1. Funding Pensioner Medical Aid The Human Resources Department is funding ex-pensioners’ medical aid to the value 
of approximately R3.246 million in 2017/18 and R4.000 million in 2018/19, which is 
approximately 30% of the overall HR Budget. This results in the department being 
unable to budget accordingly for additional resources and to effectively implement 
its Annual Performance Plan targets. 

2. HR Headcount The Human Resources Department has always been unable to appoint additional 
resources due to the pensioners’ medical aid cost being placed solely within the 
Department’s budget. This is placing the current resources under strain, severe burnout 
and stress due to the workload and organisational demands. 

Future Human Resources plans and goals 
The Human Resources Department’s future plans and goals are as follows: 

• Implementation of the Organisational Structure;

• Review of job profiles and re-grade positions; 

• Finalise the Skills Capability Framework; 

• Revise HR Policies; 

• Monitor the effectiveness of Training and Development and ensure return on investment; and 

• Implementation of Learnership or Internship Programmes. 

2. Human Resources Oversight  
  Statistics 
2.1 Human Resources cost by programme

Permanent employees

Programme/activity/objective

Total 
expenditure 
for the entity 

(R’000)

Personnel 
expenditure 

(R’000)

Personnel 
expenditure 

as a % of total 
expenditure

Number of 
employees

Average 
personnel cost 
per employee 

(R’000)
Productivity SA (All except WPC 
and TAS) 52 644 43 535 83% 76 573

Workplace Challenge 16 475 12 441 76% 19 655

Turnaround Solutions 33 622 4 118 12% 8 515

TOTAL 102 741 60 094 58% 103 583

Temporary employees

Programme/activity/objective

Total 
expenditure 
for the entity 

(R’000)

Personnel 
expenditure 

(R’000)

Personnel 
expenditure 

as a % of total 
expenditure

Number of 
employees

Average 
personnel cost 
per employee 

(R’000)
Productivity SA (All except WPC 
and TAS) 52 644 1517 2.9% 1 1 517

Workplace Challenge 16 475 43 0.3% 3 14

Turnaround Solutions 33 622 0 0% 0 0

TOTAL 102 741 1560 1.5% 4 390
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2.2 Human resources cost by salary band
The following amounts reflected in the below tables exclude Leave Provisions. 

Permanent employees 

Level 

Personnel 
expenditure 

(R’000)

% of personnel 
expenditure to total 

personnel cost 
Number of 
employees

Average personnel 
cost per employee 

(R’000)
Top management 8 735 14% 7 1 248

Senior management 15 518 26% 19 817

Professional qualified 27 417 46% 49 560

Skilled 7 135 12% 21 340

Semi-skilled 1 289 2% 7 184

Unskilled 0 0% 0 0

TOTAL 60 094 100% 103 583

Temporary employees 

Level 

Personnel 
expenditure 

(R’000)

% of personnel 
expenditure to total 

personnel cost
Number of 
employees

Average personnel 
cost per employee 

(R’000)
Top management 0 0% 0 0

Senior management 818 52% 1 818

Professional qualified 0 0% 0 0

Skilled 667 43% 1 667

Semi-skilled 75 5% 2 38

Unskilled 0 0% 0 0

TOTAL 1 560 100% 4 390

Note: In addition to the personnel expenditure figures reflected above, the organisation spent R3.246 million on pensioners medical costs for 2017/18 
and will be spending approximately R4.000 million in 2018/19.  

2.3 Performance rewards
Programme/activity/

objective Performance rewards
Personnel expenditure 

(R’000)
% of performance rewards 

to total personnel cost
Top management 0 0 0%

Senior management 0 0 0%

Professional qualified 0 0 0%

Skilled 0 0 0%

Semi-skilled 0 0 0%

Unskilled 0 0 0%

TOTAL 0 0 0%
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3. Training and Development
The purpose of the Training and Development Plan is to have competent and skilled employees 
that will support and implement organisational strategy, the mandate in terms of the Employment 
Services Act, No. 4 of 2014 and the revised Business Model. This section highlights the efforts 
displayed by the organisation with regard to skills development and uplifting employees through 
the organisation’s financial assistance and training programmes.

3.1 Training initiatives 
The organisation’s Workplace Skills Plan is prepared based on the business recommended interventions 
and Individual Development Plans (IDPs) of employees. IDPs undergo an annual review to ensure 
that they are aligned to the overall strategic objectives of the organisation and the relevant training 
needs of the respective departments. 

88 employees attended 82 training interventions during 2017/18. This represents 96% of the 
overall workforce profile. 88% of the Training Plan was achieved against the annual target of 80%. 
The training expenditure was R538 thousand against the training budget of R770 thousand. The 
remaining budget could not be utilised due to financial constraints faced by the organisation. 

93% of employees submitted IDPs for 2017/18. The remaining employees did not require training, 
however they were included in business recommended training interventions. 

The training budget for 2018/19 is R1.379 million which represents 1.5% of the organisation’s annual 
salary costs. The key focus will be on business recommended and IDP interventions. The rationale for 
this strategic decision is to ensure that the organisation has the correct competencies and skills set to 
drive the organisational strategic objectives based on the requirements of the new Business Model. 

The organisation has introduced e-learning as a platform to enhance employees’ skills whilst 
minimising the amount of time spent away from their workstations. Other benefits of e-learning 
include the ability for employees to work at their own pace at a time most convenient for them, 
reduced travel costs and the ability for delegates to repeat sections of the training material if required. 

3.1.1  Below is a tabular illustration of employees who attended  
  training interventions

Level
African Coloured Indian White Total 

females
Total 

males
Grand 
total

% 
Gender % Race

M F M F M F M F F HDI
1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 0%

2 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 4 25% 100%

3 4 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 2 5 7 29% 86%

4 4 3 0 0 1 1 0 1 5 5 10 50% 90%

5 15 16 2 1 1 2 1 3 22 19 41 54% 98%

6 3 6 1 0 0 2 0 2 10 4 14 71% 86%

7 1 7 0 0 0 1 0 0 8 1 9 89% 100%

8 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 3 0% 100%

9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 0%

GRAND 
TOTAL 33 34 3 1 2 7 2 6 48 40 88 55% 91%
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3.1.2  Below is a graphic illustration of employees who attended  
  training interventions
Racial breakdown    

Gender breakdown 
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3.2 Training costs 

Programme/activity/
objective

Personnel 
expenditure 

(R’000)

Training 
expenditure

(R’000)

Training 
expenditure 

as a % of 
personnel

Cost

Number of 
employees 

trained

Average 
training cost 

per employee
Productivity SA (All except WPC 
and TAS) 45 051 356 0.8% 67 R5 313

Workplace challenge 12 485 98 0.8% 15 R6 533

Turnaround Solutions 4 118 84 1.9% 6 R14 000

TOTAL 61 654 538 0.9% 88 R6 114

3.3 Financial Assistance
In order to assist employees to obtain formal qualifications that are in line with organisational 
objectives, Productivity SA offers financial assistance towards the costs of tertiary level studies. 
This will ensure that employees are equipped to achieve the organisational mandate as espoused 
in the Business Model and the Employment Services Act, No. 4 of 2014. After the employees have 
acquired the qualification, they are required to demonstrate a return on investment by entering into 
a service obligation agreement with the organisation. The service obligation period also applies to 
employees that have taken study leave whilst paying for their own studies in order to demonstrate 
a return on investment for the study leave days taken. 
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Financial assistance amounting to R63 959 was given to five employees towards costs for academic 
qualifications. 

Applications submitted were for the following qualifications: 

• Bachelor of Commerce: Business Management;

• Bachelor of Communications;

• Master’s in Business Administration;

• Association of Chartered Accountants; and

• Bachelor of Arts Honours Psychology.

4. Organisational Development 
Productivity SA has embarked on a culture shift journey and the following cultural pillars are currently 
being implemented to bring about the desired culture:

4.1 Culture and values pillar

Purpose
• To define the desired culture, values and associated behaviours to support a performance 

driven environment. 

Deliverables
• Implementation of Climate Survey during Quarter 4 (January to March 2018).

Progress
• The Climate Survey was not implemented in Quarter 4 despite the HR Department budgeting 

for it. This was due to the financial constraints experienced by the organisation.

4.2 Organisational Design and Review Pillar

Purpose
• To create a flexible structure;

• To enable career growth; and

• To support a performance driven culture.

Deliverables
• Review job profiles;

• Conduct job evaluation and re-grading exercises; and

• Redesign organisational structure.

Progress 
• The Organisational Review and Design Task Team was established in July 2017 in order to 

review the current organisational structure and design an organisational structure that would 
be aligned to the new Business Model. The Task Team consists of representatives from the 
Executive Committee, Senior Management, SAPTU, Human Resources and Regions.

• The Task Team sourced input from Management, Employees, the Executive Committee and the 
HR and Committee and finalised the structure design. The Human Resources Department put 
forward a Memorandum to the CEO and Board for approval of the structure. The design was 
based on a phased-in approach over six years. The Board approved the structure in March 2018. 

• The Organisational Review and Design Task Team will reconvene to review the implementation 
plan, which will be tabled before the Board in May 2018. Guiding principles must also be 
compiled and signed off by the Task Team. This will include identifying vacancies across 
programmes and the filling of strategic positions. 
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• The Human Resources Department distributed job profiles to Executive/Regional Managers 
during February 2018 requesting their input and review of job profiles within their Programmes/
Departments. This exercise will form the basis of revising and standardising the job profiles 
for employees in line with the new Business Model requirements and the new organisational 
structure.

• The Task Team will reconvene in the second week of May 2018 to review and assess the input 
and finalise the job profiles. 

• Job evaluations will be conducted to determine whether the changes in job scope and content 
would lead to job and salary level adjustments. 

4.3 Performance management pillar

Purpose
• To review and re-design the current Performance Management System to reward and recognise 

performance excellence. 

• To cascade the strategic priorities and goals to programmes and to individual key performance 
indicators.

Deliverables
• Improved Performance Management System aligned to organisational strategy, where individual 

performance is monitored, assessed and evaluated.

Progress
• The organisation reviews employees’ performance over the following review periods:

- Review period 1: (April to September)

- Review period 2: (October to March)

• The scorecard template was revised to include an additional weighting for Key Objectives, 
whereby both review periods can be weighted differently to cater for programmes.

• Performance Contracting 2017/18 submission rate was 100%.

• Performance Review 1 for 2017/18 submission rate was 100%. 

• Performance Review 2 for 2017/18 was due on 30 April 2018 and an extension was granted 
until 16 May 2018. 

• Performance Contracting 2018/19 is due on 31 May 2018. 

4.4 Learning and growth pillar

Purpose
• To have competent and skilled employees that will support and implement organisational 

strategy.

Deliverables
• Skills Audit;

• Training and Development plan; and 

• Talent Management Strategy, plan, processes and tools.

Progress
• 88% of the Training Plan for 2017/18 was implemented against an annual target of 80%. 

• Talent Management Career Path discussions have been placed on hold pending the 
implementation of the proposed organisational structure. 

• The Skills Audit will be conducted after the finalisation of the job profile exercise by the 
Organisational Review and Design Task Team. 
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• This will form the basis of the revised Capability Framework where a gap analysis exercise will 
be conducted to assess current employees’ skills and competencies against the organisational 
requirements. Where necessary, Individual Development Plans will be revised to address the 
skills gap. 

4.5 Reward and recognition pillar

Purpose:
• To implement a reward and recognition system that will recognise performance excellence.

Deliverables
• Salary benchmarking;

• Remuneration policy; and

• Incentive scheme. 

Progress
• The Draft Reward and Recognition Policy has been designed and presented to the Employment 

Equity Committee, however, it needs to be reviewed based on the changes in terms of the 
revised Business Model. 

• The implementation of the Policy will be subject to the organisation being financially viable.

4.6 Leadership pillar

Purpose

• To have competent and skilled leaders that will drive organisational strategy.

Deliverables
• Leadership competency model;

• Leadership branding and communication; and

• Leadership development.

Progress
• Leadership development programme will be launched pending the availability of financial 

resources and the implementation of the new organisational structure. 
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5. Recruitment and Selection
5.1  Employment and vacancies

Permanent employees 

Programme/activity/objective

2016/17
number of 
employees
April 2017

2017/18
approved 

posts

2017/18
number of 
employees 
march 2018

2017/18 
vacancies

% of 
vacancies

Productivity SA (All except WPC and TAS) 66 75 74 3 20%

Workplace Challenge 17 22 12 8 53%

Turnaround Solutions 9  9 5 4 27%

TOTAL 92 106 91 15 100%

Temporary employees 

Programme/activity/ objective

2016/17
number of 
employees
April 2017

2017/18
approved 

posts

2017/18
number of 
employees 
march 2018

2017/18 
vacancies

% of 
vacancies

Productivity SA (All except WPC and TAS) 4 0 0 0 0%

Workplace Challenge 2 0 0 0 0%

Turnaround Solutions 0 1 1 0 0%

TOTAL 6 1 1 0 0%

Permanent employees 

Salary band

2016/17
number of 
employees
April 2017

2017/18
approved 

posts

2017/18
number of 
employees 
march 2018

2017/18 
vacancies

% of 
vacancies

Top management 7 7 7 0 0%

Senior management 16 20 16 3 20%

Professional qualified 42 51 42 11 73%

Skilled 20 21 20 0 0%

Semi-skilled 6 7 6 1 7%

Unskilled 0 0 0 0 0%

TOTAL 91 106 91 15 100%

The position of IT and Facilities Manager was vacant for five months. 

The reason for the delay was that the first candidate declined the offer of employment because the 
candidate’s salary expectation exceeded the budget for the position. Therefore, the recruitment 
process had to start from scratch which led to a delay in filling the position.
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Temporary employees 

Salary band

2016/17
number of 
employees
March 2018

2017/18
approved 

posts

2017/18
number of 
employees 
April 2018

2017/18 
vacancies

% of 
vacancies

Top management 0 0 0 0 0

Senior management 1 1 1 0 0

Professional qualified 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled 0 0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 0 0 0 0 0

Unskilled 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 1 1 1 0 0%

5.2 Employment changes

Permanent employees 

Salary band

Employment 
at beginning of 

period
April 2017 Appointments Terminations 

Employment at 
end of the period 

March 2018
Top management 5 2 0 7

Senior management 18 3 5 16

Professional qualified 44 4 6 42

Skilled 18 3 1 20

Semi-skilled 6 1 1 6

Unskilled 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 91 13 13 91

Temporary employees 

Salary band

Employment 
at beginning of 

period
April 2017 Appointments Terminations 

Employment at 
end of the period 

March 2018
Top management 1 0 1 0

Senior management 0 1 0 1

Professional qualified 0 0 0 0

Skilled 3 1 4 0

Semi-skilled 4 0 4 0

Unskilled 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 8 1 9 1
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5.3 Reasons for staff leaving 
Twelve permanent employees left the organisation. Eight employees resigned and four retired. 

Five temporary employees left the organisation. Two employees resigned, two employees’ contracts 
ended and one employee was dismissed. 

The labour turnover in terms of resignation of employees (permanent and temporary) represent 
9% of the overall workforce against the target of 5%. Reasons for resignation included the lack of 
funding experienced by the entity, perceived poor leadership, employees feeling that they were 
not valued and employees receiving better salary offers. 

The below table reflects both permanent and temporary terminations:

Reason Number % of total number of staff leaving
Death 0 0%

Resignation 10 59%

Dismissal 1 6%

Retirement 4 23%

Ill health 0 0%

Expiry of contract 2 12%

Other: internal movements 0 0%

TOTAL 17 100%

6. Labour Relations: Misconduct  
  and Disciplinary Action

Nature of disciplinary action Number 
Verbal warning 1

Written warning 2

Final written warning 0

Dismissal 1

TOTAL 4

7. Workforce Profile
7.1 Below is a tabular illustration of Productivity SA’s  
 permanent workforce profile

Level
African Coloured Indian White Total 

females
Total 

males
Grand 
total

% 
Gender % Race

F M F M F M F M F HDI
1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 100

2 1 3 1 0 0 0 1 0 3 3 6 50 83

3 1 3 0 0 1 0 0 1 2 4 6 33 83

4 3 6 0 0 1 1 0 2 4 9 13 27 87

5 20 18 2 2 2 1 3 1 27 22 49 55 92

6 6 3 0 1 2 0 2 0 10 4 14 71 86

7 5 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 7 0 7 100 100

8 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 3 0 100

9 3 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 4 100 100

GRAND TOTAL 39 37 5 3 7 2 6 4 57 46 103 55 90
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7.2 Below is a graphic illustration of Productivity SA’s  
  permanent workforce profile

Racial breakdown     

Gender breakdown 

  

7.3 Below is a tabular illustration of Productivity SA’s  
  temporary workforce profile, including fixed-term  
  employees and graduates

Level
African Coloured Indian White Total 

Females
Total 
Males

Grand 
Total

% 
Gender % Race

F M F M F M F M F HDI
1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 100 0

5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 100 0

7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

9 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 0 100

GRAND TOTAL 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 0 2 2 4 50 50
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Table 7.3 is broken down as follows:

Fixed-term employees:  2

Productivity SA graduates:  2

Total:     4

7.4 Below is a graphic illustration of Productivity SA’s  
  temporary workforce profile, including fixed-term  
  employees and graduates: 

Racial breakdown     

Gender breakdown 
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8. Equity Target and     
  Employment Equity Status
Explanations: The below targets include the current workforce profile for 2017/18 and the targets 
are for the 2018/19 period.

Levels

Male
African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target
Top management 4 4 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior management 8 11 0 0 0 1 2 3

Professional qualified 17 19 2 3 1 1 0 2

Skilled 2 2 1 1 0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 3 3 0 0 0 0 0 0

Unskilled 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 34 39 3 4 1 2 2 5

Levels

Female
African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target
Top management 1 1 1 1 0 0 1 1

Senior management 4 4 0 0 2 2 1 2

Professional qualified 17 20 2 2 1 2 2 2

Skilled 11 10 1 1 3 3 2 2

Semi-skilled 2 3 1 1 0 0 0 0

Unskilled 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 35 38 5 5 6 7 6 7

Levels

Disabled staff
Male Female

Current Target Current Target
Top management 0 0 0 0

Senior management 0 0 0 0

Professional qualified 0 0 0 0

Skilled 0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 0 0 0 0

Unskilled 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 0 0 0
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Independent Auditor’s Report to Parliament 
on Productivity SA
Report on the audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
1. We have audited the Financial Statements of Productivity SA set out on pages 65 to 93 which comprise the Statement of Financial 

Position as at 31 March 2018, the Statement of Financial Performance, Statement of Changes in Net Assets, Statement of Cash 
Flows and Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the Financial 
Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

2. In our opinion, the Financial Statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Productivity SA as at 
31 March 2018, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with South African Standards 
of Generally Recognised Accounting Standards (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management 
Act of South Africa, No. 1 of 1999 (PFMA).

Basis for opinion
3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those 

standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements section of this auditor’s 
report.

4. We are independent of the entity in accordance with the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’ Code of professional conduct of 
registered auditors (IRBA code) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of the Financial Statements 
in South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA code and in accordance other 
ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA code is consistent with the International Ethics 
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of ethics for professional accountants (parts A and B).

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material uncertainty relating to going concern
6. We draw attention to the matter below. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

7. We draw attention to note 35 to the Financial Statements, which indicates that, as of 31 March 2018 the entity had an accumulated 
deficit of R14 741 654 and, the entity’s liabilities exceeded its total assets by R14 741 654. The note further states that the going 
concern is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of these is that the agreed funding will be received as per 
the signed Memorandum of Agreement with the funders. These events or conditions, indicate that a material uncertainty exists 
that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Responsibilities of Accounting Authority for the Financial Statements
8. The Accounting Authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Financial Statements in accordance with 

SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA, and for such internal control as the Accounting Authority determines 
is necessary to enable the preparation of Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.

9. In preparing the Financial Statements, the Accounting Authority is responsible for assessing Productivity SA’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless the Accounting Authority either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 
to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements
10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
Financial Statements.

11. A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements is included in the annexure to this auditor’s 
report.
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Report on the audit of the annual performance report

Introduction and scope
12. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, No. 25 of 2004 (PAA) and the general notice issued in terms thereof, we 

have a responsibility to report material findings on the reported performance information against predetermined objectives 
for selected programmes presented in the annual performance report. We performed procedures to identify findings but not 
to gather evidence to express assurance.

13. Our procedures address the reported performance information, which must be based on the approved performance planning 
documents of the entity. We have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of the performance indicators included 
in the planning documents. Our procedures also did not extend to any disclosures or assertions relating to planned performance 
strategies and information in respect of future periods that may be included as part of the reported performance information. 
Accordingly, our findings do not extend to these matters.

14. We evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in accordance with the criteria developed 
from the performance management and reporting framework, as defined in the general notice, for the following selected 
programmes presented in the annual performance report of the entity for the year ended 31 March 2018:

Programmes Pages in the annual performance report
Programme 4 – Productivity Organisation Solutions 27–28

Programme 5 – Value Chain Competitiveness 29–31

Programme 6 – Turnaround Solutions 31–32

15. We performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was properly presented and whether 
performance was consistent with the approved performance planning documents. We performed further procedures to 
determine whether the indicators and related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the reliability of the reported 
performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

16. We did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for the following 
programmes:

• Programme 4: Productivity Organisational Solutions

• Programme 5: Value Chain Competitiveness

• Programme 6: Turnaround Solutions

Other matters
17. We draw attention to the matters below.

Achievement of planned targets
18. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 20 to 33 for information on the achievement of planned targets for the year 

and explanations provided for the under over achievement of a significant number of targets.

Adjustment of material misstatements
19. We identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing. These material misstatements were 

on the reported performance information of Productivity Organisational Solutions. As management subsequently corrected the 
misstatements, we did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information.

Report on the audit of compliance with legislation

Introduction and scope
20. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, we have a responsibility to report material findings 

on the compliance of the entity with specific matters in key legislation. We performed procedures to identify findings but not 
to gather evidence to express assurance.

21. The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislations are as follows:

Annual Financial Statements
22. The Financial Statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting 

framework, as required by section 55(1) (b) of the PFMA. Material misstatements of current liabilities, revenue from exchange 
transactions and expenditure identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statement were corrected, resulting in the 
Financial Statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion.



Productivity SA 63  

Expenditure management
23. Effective steps were not taken to prevent fruitless and wasteful expenditure amounting to R518 093, as disclosed in note 28 to the 

Annual Financial Statements, as required by section 51(1)(b)(ii) of the PFMA. The fruitless and wasteful expenditure was caused 
by late payment of suppliers due to the entity not having sufficient funds and not receiving the grant on time from the funders.

24. Effective and appropriate steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure amounting to R152 780, as disclosed in note 29 
to the Annual Financial Statements, as required by section 51(1)(b)(ii) of the PFMA. The irregular expenditure was caused by the 
entity not following the terms of agreement for the payment of suppliers.

Other information
25. The Accounting Authority is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included 

in the annual report. The other information does not include the Financial Statements, the auditor’s report and those selected 
programmes presented in the annual performance report that have been specifically reported in this auditor’s report.

26. Our opinion on the Financial Statements and findings on the reported performance information and compliance with legislation 
do not cover the other information and we do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

27. In connection with our audit, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements and the selected programmes presented in the annual 
performance report, or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

28. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement in this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. No other material inconsistencies were identified in the other information. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Internal control deficiencies
29. We considered internal control relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements, reported performance information and compliance 

with applicable legislation; however, our objective was not to express any form of assurance on it. The matters reported below 
are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the basis for the opinion, the findings on the annual 
performance report and the findings on compliance with legislation included in this report.

Leadership
30. Although leadership implemented controls to ensure compliance with laws, regulations and internally designed policies and 

procedures, certain non-compliance issues were identified.

Financial and performance management
31. Management did not adequately monitor adherence with the requirements of Treasury Regulation for deviation from Supply 

Chain Management processes and as a result irregular expenditure was incurred.

32. Although management reviewed the Financial Statements and annual performance report for completeness and accuracy prior 
to its submission for audit purposes, certain misstatements and non-compliance issues were identified.

Other reports
33. We draw attention to the following engagements conducted by various parties that had, or could have, an impact on the matters 

reported in the entity’s Financial Statements, reported performance information, compliance with applicable legislation and 
other related matters. These reports did not form part of our opinion on the Financial Statements or our findings on the reported 
performance information or compliance with legislation.

34. An independent consultant investigated an allegation of possible misappropriation of the entity’s assets at the request of the entity 
and the department, which covered the period 2012/13 to 31 December 2016. The investigation was concluded on 9 April 2018. 
The final report was presented and adopted by the board on 21 May 2018. The entity is in the process of implementing the 
recommendations of the report.

Auditor tenure
35. In terms of the IRBA rule published in Government Gazette Number 39475 dated 4 December 2015, we report that Nexia SAB&T 

has been the auditors of Productivity SA for 6 years.

Nexia SAB&T
Per. C. Chigora 
Engagement Director 
Registered Auditor 
31 July 2018

119 Witch Hazel Avenue 
Highveld Technopark 
Centurion
0146
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Annexure – Auditor’s responsibility for the audit
1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism 

throughout our audit of the Financial Statements, and the procedures performed on reported performance information for 
selected programmes and on the entity’s compliance with respect to the selected subject matters.

Financial Statements
2. In addition to our responsibility for the audit of the Financial Statements as described in this auditor’s report, we also:

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control;

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control;

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the Accounting Authority;

• conclude on the appropriateness of the Accounting Authority’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation 
of the Financial Statements. We also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on Productivity SA ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the Financial Statements about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
the opinion on the Financial Statements. Our conclusions are based on the information available to me at the date of this 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease continuing as a going concern; and

• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether 
the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Communication with those charged with governance
3. We communicate with the Accounting Authority regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 

and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

4. We also confirm to the Accounting Authority that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, 
and communicate all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to have a bearing on our independence 
and, where applicable, related safeguards.

5. From the matters communicated to those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of the most significance 
in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore key audit matters. We describe these matters in this 
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in this auditor’s report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest of such communication.
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Statement of Financial Position 
as at 31 March 2018

Figures in Rand Note 2018 2017

Assets
Current assets

Inventories 6 188 853 172 791

Receivables from exchange transactions 7 1 465 801 3 931 535

Cash and cash equivalents 8 14 373 955 21 982 765

16 028 609 26 087 091

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 2 139 224 2 340 292

Intangible assets 4 12 677 4 214

Receivables from exchange transactions 7 882 000 882 000

3 033 901 3 226 506

TOTAL ASSETS 19 062 510 29 313 597

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Finance lease obligation 9 418 427 380 649

Operating lease liability 5 985 409 295 948

Payables from exchange transactions 12 10 021 810 6 139 891

Unspent conditional grants and receipts 10 21 406 338 42 063 362

Provisions 11 431 245 479 399

33 263 229 49 359 249

Non-current liabilities

Finance lease obligation 9 540 935 959 363

TOTAL LIABILITIES 33 804 164 50 318 612

Net Liabilities (14 741 654) (21 005 015)

ACCUMULATED DEFICIT (14 741 654) (21 005 015)
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Statement of Financial Performance 
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Figures in Rand Note 2018 2017

Revenue
REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Sale of goods 1 083 750

Rendering of services 2 652 705 6 255 142

Other income 13 2 809 737 2 702 578

Interest received 14 553 845 240 602

Gain on disposal of assets 1 767 13 758

Total revenue from exchange transactions 6 019 137 9 212 830

REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Transfer revenue

Government grants and subsidies 15 102 635 477 87 392 865

Donation from LEDET 350 000 300 000

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 102 985 477 87 692 865

Total revenue 109 004 614 96 905 695

Expenditure
Employee costs 16 (64 899 763) (61 984 783)

Depreciation and amortisation (401 323) (642 428)

Finance costs 17 (381 453) (188 073)

Lease rentals on operating lease (5 538 671) (5 163 634)

Debt impairment 7&18 (590 134) (12 897 339)

Legal fees (590 137) (402 877)

Loss on foreign exchange - (5 934)

Operating expenses 19 (30 339 772) (27 742 361)

Total expenditure (102 741 253) (109 027 429)

Surplus/(deficit) for the year 6 263 361 (12 121 734)
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Figures in Rand Accumulated deficit Total net assets
Balance at 1 April 2016 (8 883 281) (8 883 281)

Changes in net assets

Deficit for the year (12 121 734) (12 121 734)

Total changes (12 121 734) (12 121 734)

Balance at 1 April 2017 (21 005 015) (21 005 015)

Changes in net assets

Surplus for the year 6 263 361 6 263 361

Total changes 6 263 361 6 263 361

Balance at 31 March 2018 (14 741 654) (14 741 654)

Cash Flow Statement 
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Figures in Rand Note 2018 2017

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts

Sale of goods and services 7 929 258 24 672 790

Grants 102 635 477 87 392 865

Interest income 553 845 240 602

Other receipts 350 000 300 000

111 468 580 112 606 257

Payments

Employee costs (64 899 763) (61 984 783)

Finance costs (381 453) (188 073)

Payments to suppliers and other (53 194 423) (44 365 422)

(118 475 639) 106 538 278)

Net cash flows from operating activities 21 (7 007 059) 6 067 979

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 3 (226 901) (448 616)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 5 800 27 101

Net cash flows from investing activities (221 101) (421 515)

Cash flows from financing activities
Finance lease payments (380 650) (346 281)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (7 608 810) 5 300 183

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 21 982 765 16 688 516

Effect of exchange rate movement on cash balances - (5 934)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 8 14 373 955 21 982 765
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and 
Actual Amounts
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Figures in Rand
Approved 

budget Adjustments Final budget

Actual 
amounts on 
comparable 

basis

Difference 
between 

final budget 
and actual Note

Statement of Financial 
Performance
REVENUE

Revenue from exchange transactions

Sale of goods 81 000 1 171 000 1 252 000 1 083 (1 250 917) 26

Rendering of services 21 930 000 (4 949 000) 16 981 000 2 652 705 (14 328 295) 26

Other income 16 907 000 (14 039 000) 2 868 000 2 809 737 (58 263)

Interest received 190 000 476 000 666 000 553 845 (112 155)

Total revenue from exchange transactions 39 108 000 (17 341 000) 21 767 000 6 017 370 (15 749 630)

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfer revenue

Government grants and subsidies 138 010 000 - 138 010 000 102 635 477 (35 374 523) 26

Donation from LEDET 300 000 50 000 350 000 350 000 -
Total revenue from non-exchange 
transactions 138 310 000 50 000 138 360 000 102 985 477 (35 374 523)

Total revenue 177 418 000 (17 291 000) 160 127 000 109 002 847 (51 124 153)

EXPENDITURE

Employee costs (67 315 000) (100 000) (67 415 000) (64 899 763) 2 515 237 26

Depreciation and amortisation (946 000) 265 000 (681 000) (401 323) 279 677

Finance costs (111 000) - (111 000) (381 453) (270 453)

Lease rentals on operating lease (5 926 000) 191 000 (5 735 000) (5 538 671) 196 329

Debt impairment - - - (590 134) (590 134)

Contracted services - - - (590 137) (590 137)

Operating expenses (103 120 000) 16 935 000 (86 185 000) (30 339 772) 55 845 229 26

Total expenditure (177 418 000) 17 291 000 (160 127 000) (102 741 253) 57 385 748

Operating surplus - - - 6 261 594 6 261 595

Gain on disposal of assets - - - 1 767 1 767

Surplus - - - 6 263 361 6 263 362
Actual amount on comparable basis 
as presented in the budget and actual 
comparative statement - - - 6 263 361 6 263 362

Reconciliation
Basis difference

Bad debts 590 134

Depreciation 401 323

Finance costs 381 453

Other gains (1 767)
Actual amount on comparable basis 
as presented in the budget and actual 
comparative statement 7 634 504
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Accounting Policies
1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 
(GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 91(1) of the Public Finance Management Act, No. 1 of 1999.

These Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost 
convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise.

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or permitted by a Standard of GRAP.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these Annual Financial 
Statements, are disclosed below.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

1.1 Presentation currency
These Annual Financial Statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the entity.

1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
In preparing the Annual Financial Statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts 
represented in the Annual Financial Statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the application of judgement 
is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates which may be material to the 
Annual Financial Statements. Significant judgements include:

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional disclosure of these 
estimates of provisions are included in note 11 – Provisions.

Assessment of useful lives

The residual value and useful life of an asset are regarded as accounting estimates and intrinsically have an element of uncertainty 
associated with them. As such, they are based on information available at the time that they are estimated.

It is therefore expected that these estimates will differ at various stages of an asset’s life depending on economic times and management’s 
intentions. Useful lives and residual amounts are reviewed and assessed at each financial year-end.

Such review and assessment takes into consideration the nature of the assets, their intended use and technical obsolescence. The 
residual value and useful life of an asset is reviewed and revised if necessary at each financial year-end.

Allowance for doubtful debts

An impairment loss is recognised on debtors in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is impaired. The impairment 
is measured as the difference between the debtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted 
at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition.

1.3 Going concern assumption
These Annual Financial Statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the entity will continue to operate as a going 
concern for at least the next 12 months.

1.4  Inventories
Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, then their costs 
are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for:

• consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.
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Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of completion and the 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution.

Current replacement cost is the cost the entity incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date.

The cost of inventories comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 
their present location and condition.

The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and segregated for specific 
projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual costs.

The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average cost formula. The same cost formula is used for all inventories having 
a similar nature and use to the entity.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which the related 
revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are distributed, or related services 
are rendered. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current replacement cost and all losses of 
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down 
of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current replacement cost, are recognised as a reduction in the amount 
of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

1.5  Leases
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is classified 
as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately.

Finance leases – lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position at amounts equal to the fair value of the 
leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included 
in the Statement of Financial Position as a finance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge 
is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the remaining balance of the liability.

Operating leases – lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between the 
amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

1.6 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the production or 
supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:

• it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; and

• the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the 
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and 
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and 
equipment and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying 
amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a combination 
of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item’s fair value 
was not determinable, its deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location and 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
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Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight-line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated residual value.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item     Depreciation method  Average useful life

Library     Straight-line   3–5 years

Furniture and fixtures  Straight-line   6–10 years

Motor vehicles   Straight-line   5–8 years

Computer equipment  Straight-line   3–5 years

Finance lease asset   Straight-line   5 years

The depreciable amount of an asset is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is 
depreciated separately.

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the entity expectations about the residual value and the 
useful life of an asset have changed since the preceding reporting date. If any such indication exists, the entity revises the expected 
useful life and/or residual value accordingly. The change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic 
benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when 
the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined 
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

1.7 Intangible assets
An asset is identifiable if it either:

• is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, either 
individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liabilities, regardless of whether the entity intends to do so; or

• arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are transferable or separable 
from the entity or from other rights and obligations.

An intangible asset is recognised when:

• it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will flow to the 
entity; and

• the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured at 
its fair value as at that date.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that the asset 
may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over its useful life.

Amortisation is provided to write-down the intangible assets, on a straight-line basis, to their residual values as follows:

Item     Depreciation method  Average useful life

Computer software   Straight line   2–5 years

Intangible assets are derecognised:

• on disposal; or

• when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of intangible assets is included in surplus or deficit when the asset is derecognised 
(unless the Standard of GRAP on leases requires otherwise on a sale and leaseback).
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1.8 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual interest of 
another entity.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured 
at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of 
any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or through the use of an 
allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an 
obligation.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity’s Statement of Financial Position.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group of 
financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial 
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating 
the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, 
prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or 
received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue 
from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and 
the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not 
possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity 
shall use the contractual cash flows over the full contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments).

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in an 
arm’s length transaction.

A financial asset is:

• cash;

• a residual interest of another entity; or

• a contractual right to:

- receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or

- exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially favourable to the 
entity.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:

• deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

• exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates.

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities 
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.

A residual interest is any contract that manifests an interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. A residual 
interest includes contributions from owners, which may be shown as:

• equity instruments or similar forms of unitised capital;

• a formal designation of a transfer of resources (or a class of such transfers) by the parties to the transaction as forming part of 
an entity’s net assets, either before the contribution occurs or at the time of the contribution; or

• a formal agreement, in relation to the contribution, establishing or increasing an existing financial interest in the net assets of 
an entity.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial 
liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or disposed of the 
financial instrument.
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Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities that have fixed or 
determinable payments, excluding those instruments that:

• the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition; or

• are held for trading.

Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an active market, and 
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Financial instruments at fair value comprise financial assets or financial liabilities that are:

• derivatives;

• combined instruments that are designated at fair value;

• instruments held for trading. A financial instrument is held for trading if:

- it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near-term; or

- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there 
is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short term profit-taking;

- non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are designated at fair value at 
initial recognition; and

- financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or financial instruments at 
cost.

Classification

The entity has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the Statement of Financial 
Position or in the notes thereto:

Class       Category

Cash and cash equivalent    Financial asset measured at amortised cost

Receivable from exchange transactions   Financial asset measured at amortised cost

The entity has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the Statement of Financial 
Position or in the notes thereto:

Class       Category

Payables from exchange transactions   Financial liability measured at amortised cost

Initial recognition

The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its Statement of Financial Position when the entity becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The entity recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.

Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its amortised costs plus transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories:

• Financial instrument at amortised cost;

• Financial instrument at fair value; and

• Financial instrument cost.

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.
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Derecognition

Financial assets

The entity derecognises a financial asset only when:

• the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived;

• the entity transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or

• the entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, has transferred control 
of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third 
party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose additional restrictions on the transfer. In 
this case, the entity :

- derecognises the asset; and

- recognises separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the entity obtaining a new financial 
asset or assuming a new financial liability, or a servicing liability, the entity recognise the new financial asset, financial liability or 
servicing liability at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration 
received is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred qualifies for derecognition in its entirety, the previous 
carrying amount of the larger financial asset is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is 
derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those parts, on the date of the transfer. For this purpose, a retained servicing asset 
is treated as a part that continues to be recognised. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part derecognised 
and the sum of the consideration received for the part derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If a transfer does not result in derecognition because the entity has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of 
the transferred asset, the entity continues to recognise the transferred asset in its entirety and recognise a financial liability for the 
consideration received. In subsequent periods, the entity recognises any revenue on the transferred asset and any expense incurred 
on the financial liability. Neither the asset, and the associated liability nor the revenue, and the associated expenses are offset.

Financial liabilities

The entity removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its Statement of Financial Position when it is extinguished 
– i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or transferred to another 
party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in surplus or deficit. 
Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by another entity by way of a non-exchange transaction are accounted for in 
accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers).

Presentation

Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense in surplus 
or deficit.

Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense in 
surplus or deficit.

A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the Statement of Financial Position when 
the entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to 
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

1.9 Employee benefits
Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees.

Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either:

• an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date; or

• an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.

Other long-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than post-employment benefits and termination benefits) that are 
not due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.
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Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within 12 months 
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.

Short-term employee benefits include items such as:

• wages, salaries and social security contributions;

• short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for the absences is due 
to be settled within 12 months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related employee service;

• bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within 12 months after the end of the reporting period in which 
the employees render the related service; and

• non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as housing, cars and cellphones) 
for current employees.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognise the undiscounted amount of 
short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service:

• as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the undiscounted 
amount of the benefits, the entity recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will 
lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and

• as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase their 
entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The entity measures the expected cost of 
accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement 
that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The entity recognise the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the entity has a present legal 
or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. 
A present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the payments.

Other post-retirement obligations

The entity provides post-retirement healthcare benefits upon retirement to some retirees.

1.10 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:

• the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;

• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the 
obligation; and

• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the 
reporting date.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected to 
be required to settle the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement 
is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The 
reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement does not exceed the amount of the 
provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is no longer 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This increase 
is recognised as an interest expense.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised. Provisions are not recognised for future 
operating deficit.
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If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and measured 
as a provision.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 31.

1.11 Commitments
Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result in the outflow 
of cash.

Commitments are disclosed in note 30 of the Annual Financial Statements.

The commitment value is calculated as the difference between contract values and payments made or recognised as payables from 
exchange transactions as at the last day of the year.

1.12 Revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an 
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives 
approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an 
arm’s length transaction.

Measurement

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:

• the entity has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

• the entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective 
control over the goods sold;

• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

• it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity; and

• the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with the transaction 
is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome of a transaction can be 
estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

• it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;

• the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and

• the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a straight-line 
basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents the stage of completion. When 
a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the significant act is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only 
to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage of completion 
is determined by services performed to date as a percentage of total services to be performed.
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Interest

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends or similar distributions is recognised 
when:

• it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity, and

• the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest is recognised in surplus or deficit using the effective interest rate method.

1.13 Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Revenue from non-exchange transactions takes the form of grants from the Department of Labour, the Unemployment Insurance 
Fund and the Department of Trade and Industry.

Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent that 
a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.

As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction 
recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of revenue equal to that 
reduction.

Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the entity.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to the amount 
of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability. Where a liability is 
required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the reporting 
date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is subsequently reduced, because 
the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is recognised as revenue.

1.14 Comparative figures
Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

1.15 Unauthorised expenditure
Unauthorised expenditure means:

• overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and

• expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main division, not in accordance with the purpose 
of the main division.

All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance in the year 
that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where recovered, 
it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.16 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance 
in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where 
recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.
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1.17 Irregular expenditure
Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in contravention 
of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including -

(a) this Act; or

(b) the State Tender Board Act, No. 86 of 1968, or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or

(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.

National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/09 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA requires the following 
(effective from 1 April 2008):

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current Financial Year and which was condoned before year-end 
and/or before finalisation of the Financial Statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In 
such an instance, no further action is required with the exception of updating the note to the Financial Statements.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current Financial Year and for which condonement is being awaited 
at year-end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception of updating the 
note to the Financial Statements.

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous Financial Year and is only condoned in the following Financial Year, the 
register and the disclosure note to the Financial Statements must be updated with the amount condoned.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current Financial Year and which was not condoned by the National 
Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for the irregular 
expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate steps must 
thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the Accounting Officer or Accounting 
Authority may write-off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the Financial Statements. The 
irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not been condoned and no person 
is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the relevant programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such 
in the note to the Financial Statements and updated accordingly in the irregular expenditure register.

1.18 Segment information
A segment is an activity of an entity:

• that generates economic benefits or service potential (including economic benefits or service potential relating to transactions 
between activities of the same entity);

• whose results are regularly reviewed by management to make decisions about resources to be allocated to that activity and in 
assessing its performance; and

• for which separate financial information is available.

Reportable segments are the actual segments which are reported on in the segment report. They are the segments identified above 
or alternatively an aggregation of two or more of those segments where the aggregation criteria are met.

Measurement

The amount of each segment item reported is the measure reported to management for the purposes of making decisions about 
allocating resources to the segment and assessing its performance. Adjustments and eliminations made in preparing the entity’s 
Financial Statements and allocations of revenues and expenses are included in determining reported segment surplus or deficit 
only if they are included in the measure of the segment’s surplus or deficit that is used by management. Similarly, only those assets 
and liabilities that are included in the measures of the segment’s assets and segment’s liabilities that are used by management are 
reported for that segment. If amounts are allocated to reported segment surplus or deficit, assets or liabilities, those amounts are 
allocated on a reasonable basis.

If management uses only one measure of a segment’s surplus or deficit, the segment’s assets or the segment’s liabilities in assessing 
segment performance and deciding how to allocate resources, segment surplus or deficit, assets and liabilities are reported in terms 
of that measure. If management uses more than one measure of a segment’s surplus or deficit, the segment’s assets or the segment’s 
liabilities, the reported measures are those that management believes are determined in accordance with the measurement principles 
most consistent with those used in measuring the corresponding amounts in the entity’s Financial Statements.
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1.19 Budget information
Entities are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent), which is given 
effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar.

General purpose financial reporting by the entity shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used in 
accordance with the legally adopted budget.

The approved budget is prepared on a cash basis and presented by functional classification linked to performance outcome objectives.

The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 2017/04/01 to 2018/03/31.

The budget for the economic entity includes all the entities approved budgets under its control.

The Annual Financial Statements and the budget are not on the same basis of accounting therefore a reconciliation between the 
Statement of Financial Performance and the budget have been included in the Annual Financial Statements. Refer to note 26.

1.20 Related parties
A related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise significant influence 
over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control.

Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Joint control is the agreed sharing of control over an activity by a binding arrangement, and exists only when the strategic financial 
and operating decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control (the venturers).

Related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the reporting entity and a related party, regardless 
of whether a price is charged.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity, but is not control over 
those policies.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, including those charged 
with the governance of the entity in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or be 
influenced by, management in their dealings with the entity.

The entity is exempt from disclosure requirements in relation to related party transactions if that transaction occurs within normal 
supplier and/or client/recipient relationships on terms and conditions no more or less favourable than those which it is reasonable to 
expect the entity to have adopted if dealing with that individual entity or person in the same circumstances and terms and conditions 
are within the normal operating parameters established by that reporting entity’s legal mandate.

Where the entity is exempt from the disclosures in accordance with the above, the entity discloses narrative information about the 
nature of the transactions and the related outstanding balances, to enable users of the entity’s Financial Statements to understand 
the effect of related party transactions on its Annual Financial Statements.

1.21 Events after reporting date
Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date and the date 
when the Financial Statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

• those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date); and

• those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting date).

The entity will adjust the amount recognised in the Financial Statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting date once 
the event occurred.

The entity will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such estimate cannot be 
made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of the Financial Statements.
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2.  New standards and interpretations

2.1  Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective
The entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for the entity’s 
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018 or later periods:

Standard/Interpretation:    Effective date:   Expected impact:
        Years beginning on or after

GRAP 18 (as amended 2016): Segment Reporting  1 April 2019   Unlikely there will be a
            material impact

GRAP 20: Related Parties    1 April 2019   Unlikely there will be a 
            material impact

GRAP 108: Statutory Receivables   1 April 2019   Unlikely there will be a 
            material impact
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31 March 2018

3.   Property, plant and equipment
Figures in Rand 2018 2017

Cost

Accumulated 
depreciation 

and 
impairment

Carrying 
value Cost

Accumulated 
depreciation 

and 
impairment

Carrying 
value

Library 178 088 (94 979) 83 109 178 088 (154 342) 23 746

Furniture and fixtures 2 046 002 (1 652 447) 393 555 2 109 236 (1 797 780) 311 456

Motor vehicles 157 601 (133 722) 23 879 157 601 (146 935) 10 666

Computer equipment 2 575 746 (1 782 818) 792 928 2 704 583 (1 946 175) 758 408

Finance lease asset 1 949 159 (1 103 406) 845 753 1 949 159 (713 143) 1 236 016

Total 6 906 596 (4 767 372) 2 139 224 7 098 667 (4 758 375) 2 340 292

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment – 2018

Figures in Rand 
Opening 
balance Additions Disposals Depreciation

Closing carrying 
amount

2018
Library 23 746 - - 59 363 83 109

Furniture and fixtures 311 456 20 979 - 61 120 393 555

Motor vehicles 10 666 - - 13 213 23 879

Computer equipment 758 408 205 922 (18 229) (153 173) 792 928

Finance lease asset 1 236 016 - - (390 263) 845 753

2 340 292 226 901 (18 229) (409 740) 2 139 224

2017
Library 1 - - 23 745 23 746

Furniture and fixtures 252 468 7 717 - 51 271 311 456

Motor vehicles 1 - - 10 665 10 666

Computer equipment 466 913 440 899 (16 575) (132 829) 758 408

Finance lease asset 1 626 102 - - (390 086) 1 236 016

2 345 485 448 616 (16 575) (437 234) 2 340 292

Pledged as security
Productivity SA has no assets classified under property, plant and equipment pledged as security for liabilities and no restrictions 
have been imposed on any of its assets.

There were no repairs and maintenance incurred on assets.
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4.  Intangible assets
Figures in Rand 2018 2017

Cost

Accumulated 
amortisation 

and 
impairment

Carrying 
value Cost

Accumulated 
amortisation 

and 
impairment

Carrying 
value

Computer software 104 580 (91 903) 12 677 104 580 (100 366) 4 214

Reconciliation of intangible assets

Figures in Rand
Opening
balance Amortisation Total

2018
Computer software 4 214 8 463 12 677

2017
Computer software 14 097 (9 883) 4 214

5.   Operating lease asset (accrual)
Figures in Rand 2018 2017
Current liabilities (985 409) (295 948)

6.  Inventories 

Figures in Rand 2018 2017
Inventories 188 853 172 791

Inventories recognised as an expense during the year 117 890 269 226

7.   Receivables from exchange transactions

Figures in Rand 2018 2017
Trade debtors 877 230 2 527 077

Employee costs in advance - 23 200

Deposits 882 000 882 000

Other receivables 565 991 589 864

Accrued receivables 22 580 791 394

2 347 801 4 813 535

Non-current assets 882 000 882 000

Current assets 1 465 801 3 931 535

2 347 801 4 813 535

Trade and other receivables impaired
As of 31 March 2018, trade and other receivables of R97 543 (2017: R12 747 339) were impaired and provided for. The amount of 
provision for impairment was R507 884 (2017: R150 000).
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7.   Receivables from exchange transactions (continued)

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

Figures in Rand 2018 2017
Opening balance (371 869) (298 458)

Provision for impairment (507 884) (150 000)

Amounts written off as uncollectible 97 543 76 589

(782 210) (371 869)
 
The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been included in operating expenses in surplus or deficit. 
Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

8.   Cash and cash equivalents
Figures in Rand 2018 2017
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand - 1 000

Bank balances 322 302 211 319

Short-term deposits 14 051 653 21 770 446

14 373 955 21 982 765

9.   Finance lease obligation
Figures in Rand 2018 2017
Minimum lease payments due
- within one year 491 659 491 659

- in second to fifth year inclusive 573 602 1 065 261

1 065 261 1 556 920

less: future finance charges (105 898) (216 908)

Present value of minimum lease payments 959 363 1 340 012

Present value of minimum lease payments due 418 427 380 649

- within one year 540 935 959 363

- in second to fifth year inclusive 959 362 1 340 012

Non-current liabilities 540 935 959 363

Current liabilities 418 427 380 649

959 362 1 340 012

At the reporting date Productivity SA had a lease agreement in respect of office equipment. The lease agreements are not renewable 
at the end of the lease term and Productivity SA does not have any option to acquire the equipment at the end of the lease term.

The average lease term was five years and the average effective borrowing rate was 10% (2017: 10%).

Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. All leases have fixed repayments and no arrangements have been entered into for 
contingent rent.

The lease agreements do not impose any restrictions on the entity.
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10. Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Government grants received that will be recognised in future accounting periods. This conditional revenue will be recognised in 
future period upon completion of Turnaround Solutions and Transnet projects in the 2018/19 Financial Year.

Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises: 

Figures in Rand 2018 2017
Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Turnaround Solutions 9 355 816 27 990 329

Transnet 12 050 522 14 073 033

21 406 338 42 063 362

Movement during the year
Opening balance – TAS 27 990 329 22 816 275

Opening balance – Transnet 14 073 033 15 690 200

Amount received – TAS 14 780 255 24 451 667

Interest capitalised – TAS 207 708 535 252

Interest capitalised – Transnet 743 452 867 070

Amount utilised – TAS (33 622 476) (19 812 866)

Amount utilised – Transnet (2 765 963) (2 484 236)

21 406 338 42 063 362

The nature and extent of grants recognised in the Annual Financial Statements and an indication of other forms of assistance from 
which the entity has directly benefited. Unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attaching to government assistance that has 
been recognised.

11. Provisions

Figures in Rand
Opening 
Balance Additions

Utilised during
the year Closing balance

2018
Audit fee 479 399 431 245 (479 399) 431 245

2017
Audit fee 584 374 479 399 (584 374) 479 399

Audit fees are based on agreed scope of work and time allocated to Productivity SA to complete the audit.

12. Payables from exchange transactions
Figures in Rand 2018 2017
Trade payables 5 818 774 253 729

Accrued payables 2 042 971 2 355 573

Accrued leave pay 1 622 219 2 922 192

Accrued bonus 537 846 608 396

10 021 810 6 139 891
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13. Other revenue
Figures in Rand 2018 2017
The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of 
goods or services are as follows:
Transnet income 2 765 963 2 484 236

Staff development 43 774 156 092

Commitment fee - 62 250

2 809 737 2 702 578

14. Investment revenue 
Figures in Rand 2018 2017
Interest revenue
Bank 553 845 240 602

15. Government grants and subsidies
Figures in Rand 2018 2017
Operating grants
Department of Labour 60 064 001 59 056 999

Unemployment Insurance Fund 33 622 476 19 812 866

Department of Trade and Industry 8 949 000 8 523 000

102 635 477 87 392 865

16. Employee related costs 
Figures in Rand 2018 2017
Basic 58 225 976 55 585 113

Bonus 1 921 790 2 039 379

Medical aid – Pensioners 3 246 058 2 820 555

UIF 337 664 368 333

SDL 554 192 515 472

Leave pay provision charge 614 083 655 931

64 899 763 61 984 783

17. Finance costs 
Figures in Rand 2018 2017
Other interest paid 381 453 188 073

18. Debt impairment 
Figures in Rand 2018 2017
Debt impairment 82 250 12 747 339

Provision for impairment 507 884 150 000

590 134 12 897 339
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19. Operating expenses
Figures in Rand 2018 2017
Auditors remuneration 1 333 483 2 641 971

Bank charges 44 696 53 760

Computer expenses 469 648 537 842

Project implementation costs – TAS 13 103 111 8 993 365

Consumables 128 497 124 806

Penalties 247 651 148

Insurance 322 705 287 295

Seminars 253 045 347 108

Magazines, books and periodicals 2 438 -

Motor vehicle expenses 21 543 16 492

Placement fees 348 113 32 923

Printing and stationery 783 564 1 397 676

Promotions 385 399 547 777

Office maintenance 266 758 270 791

Staff welfare 57 416 53 048

Subscriptions and membership fees 216 966 200 834

Communications 1 307 499 1 681 457

Training 429 851 59 976

Travel – local 4 027 591 4 487 666

Travel – overseas 85 746 60 996

Utilities 1 031 377 1 053 578

Support services 4 406 047 4 566 219

Board fees 147 749 167 815

Other expenses 918 879 158 818

30 339 772 27 742 361

20. Auditors’ remuneration
Figures in Rand 2018 2017
External 444 065 680 412

Internal 889 418 1 739 168

Forensic - 222 391

1 333 483 2 641 971
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21. Cash (used in)/generated from operations
Figures in Rand 2018 2017
Surplus/(deficit) 6 263 361 (12 121 734)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 401 323 642 428

Loss on sale of assets (1 767) (13 758)

Loss on foreign exchange - 5 934

Debt impairment 590 134 12 897 339

Movements in operating lease assets and accruals 689 461 40 856

Movements in provisions (48 154) (104 975)

Changes in working capital:

Inventories (16 062) 119 732

Receivables from exchange transactions 2 465 734 15 807 565

Consumer debtors (590 134) (12 897 339)

Payables from exchange transactions 3 896 069 (1 864 956)

Unspent conditional grants and receipts (20 657 024) 3 556 887

(7 007 059) 6 067 979

22. Income tax exemption
The entity is exempted from income tax in terms of section 10(1) (cN) of the Income Tax Act, No. 58 of 1962.

23. VAT exemption
The entity was granted exemption for VAT from July 2005 as its activities no longer comply with the definition of ‘enterprise’ in 
section 1 of the VAT Act and the requirement of VAT registration in terms of section 23 of the same Act. The entity is now included in 
the amended definition of ‘public authority’ in terms of section 1 of the VAT Act.

24. Related parties
Productivity SA received a transfer payment of R83 793 256 for funding its administrative activities from the National Revenue Fund 
through Department of Labour, Unemployment Insurance Fund and Department of Trade and Industry.

Member’s emoluments (executive and non-executive) are disclosed in note 25.

The revenue from these transaction is included in Statement of Financial Performance.

Figures in Rand 2018 2017
Department of Labour 60 064 001 59 056 999

Unemployment Insurance Fund 14 780 255 24 451 667

Department of Trade and Industry 8 949 000 8 523 000

83 793 256 92 031 666
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25.  Member’s emoluments
Productivity SA does not pay a salary to non-executive board members, however expenses incurred are compensated as an allowance.

Figures in Rand Designation Salary
Other

benefits* Total
2018
Executive
Mothunye M Chief Executive Officer 1 403 410 107 261 1 510 671

Sabela S Chief Financial Officer 812 773 62 366 875 139

Janse van Rensburg L Executive – POS 1 112 673 85 410 1 198 083

Wereley T Executive – HR 1 274 910 97 603 1 372 513

Phalatse R Executive – MC 1 092 679 104 043 1 196 722

Mosai S Executive – VCC 1 440 308 110 224 1 550 532

7 136 753 566 907 7 703 660

Figures in Rand Designation Salary
Other

benefits* Total
2017
Executive
Mothunye M Chief Executive Officer 1 319 850 97 650 1 417 500

Sabela S Chief Financial Officer 94 995 - 94 995

Janse van Rensburg L Executive – POS 1 046 424 77 420 1 123 844
Wereley T Executive – HR 1 199 001 88 709 1 287 710

Phalatse R Executive – MC 1 046 424 77 420 1 123 844

Mosai S Executive – VCC 1 356 931 100 394 1 457 325

Mashamba M Executive – TAS (Resigned) 520 900 117 769 638 669

Dlamini B Chief Financial Officer (Resigned) 914 511 139 955 1 054 466

7 499 036 699 317 8 198 353

* Other benefits comprise of entity contributions.

Figures in Rand Designation Salary
Travel and

subsistence Total
2018
Non-executive
Mdwaba MD Chairman – Board 24 046 1 366 25 412

Phaladi IM Member 14 542 3 188 17 730

Reddy L Member 10 179 - 10 179

Mbongwe N Member 17 450 4 594 22 044

Vermeulen N Member 17 450 2 788 20 238

Gordan Y Chairperson – Audit and Risk 
Committee 40 106 12 040 52 146

123 773 23 976 147 749
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Figures in Rand Designation Salary
Travel and

subsistence Total
2017
Non-executive
Mdwaba MN Chairman – Board 43 282 2 805 46 087

Phaladi IM Member 15 996 3 590 19 586

Reddy L Member 21 813 - 21 813

Mbongwe N Member 20 359 4 976 25 335

Vermeulen N Member 18 904 4 740 23 644

Gordan Y Chairperson – Audit and Risk 
Committee 28 855 2 495 31 350

149 209 18 606 167 815

26. Budget differences

Material differences between budget and actual amounts
Revenue from exchange transactions was below budget due to failure by programmes to generate additional revenue. Productivity 
SA being a schedule 3A entity has its main priority to fulfil its mandate in terms of section 31 of the Employment Services Act and as a 
result, the generation of additional revenue is not a core function resulting in programmes focusing on achieving their core mandate 
first before allocating resources to generating additional revenue. 

Revenue from non-exchange revenue was below budget as a result of not receiving full funding from the Unemployment Insurance 
Fund in line with the Memorandum of Agreement. The budget for the year was R78 720 000 and only R19 680 000 (25%) was funded 
during the Financial Year.

Employee costs were below budget mainly due to vacant positions not being filled.

Goods and services were below budget mainly attributable to a funding shortfall from the Unemployment Insurance Fund.

Differences between budget and actual amounts basis of preparation and presentation
The budget and the accounting bases differ. The Annual Financial Statements for the whole of government are prepared on the 
accrual basis using a classification based on the nature of expenses in the Statement of Financial Performance. The Annual Financial 
Statements are consolidated statements that include all controlled entities, including government business enterprises for the fiscal 
period from 2017/04/01 to 2018/03/31. The Annual Financial Statements differ from the budget, which is approved on the cash basis 
and which deals only with the general government sector that excludes government business enterprises and certain other non-
market government entities and activities.

The amounts in the Annual Financial Statements were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by functional 
classification to be on the same basis as the final approved budget. In addition, adjustments to amounts in the Annual Financial 
Statements for timing differences associated with the continuing appropriation and differences in the entities covered (government 
business enterprises) were made to express the actual amounts on a comparable basis to the final approved budget. The amounts 
of these adjustments are identified in the Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts.

Changes from the approved budget to the final budget
The changes between the approved and final budget are a consequence of delays in the approval and implementation of the 
business model.
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27. Risk management

Liquidity risk
The entity’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages liquidity risk through 
an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.

The table below analyses the entity’s financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings 
based on the remaining period at the Statement of Financial Position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in 
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact 
of discounting is not significant. 

Figures in Rand Less than 1 year Between 1 and 2 years
At 31 March 2018
Finance lease obligation 418 427 540 935
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 21 406 338 -
Payables from exchange transactions 10 021 810 -
Total 31 846 575 540 935

Figures in Rand Less than 1 year Between 1 and 2 years
At 31 March 2017
Finance lease obligation 380 649 959 363
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 42 063 362 -
Payables from exchange transactions 6 139 891 -
Total 48 583 902 959 363

Credit risk
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. The entity only 
deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counterparty.

Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an ongoing 
basis. If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, risk control assesses 
the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors.

Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the Board. The utilisation of credit 
limits is regularly monitored. Sales to retail customers are settled in cash or using major credit cards. Credit guarantee insurance is 
purchased when deemed appropriate.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year-end were as follows:

Figures in Rand 2018 2017
Financial instrument
Current 157 081 2 658 506
0–30 day 162 953 768 966
31–60 days - 2 803
61–90 days 61 352 150 206
Over 90 days 1 084 415 351 054
Total 1 465 801 3 931 535

Interest rate risk
As the entity has no significant interest-bearing assets, the entity’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent 
of changes in market interest rates.

28. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Figures in Rand 2018 2017
Opening balance 1 207 960 1 168 815
Add: Fruitless and wasteful expenditure – current year 518 093 39 145
Less: Amounts condoned (1 207 960) -

518 093 1 207 960

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure includes interest and penalties incurred on late payment of accounts.
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29. Irregular expenditure
Figures in Rand 2018 2017
Opening balance 11 178 536 9 051 000

Add: Irregular expenditure – current year 152 780 2 127 536

Less: Amounts condoned (11 178 536) -

152 780 11 178 536

Details of irregular expenditure – current year Disciplinary steps taken
Inconsistency in the evaluation of functionality and 
preference points calculation

Consequence management effected
85 500

Not following SCM process Consequence management effected 67 280

152 780

Details of irregular expenditure – 2017 Disciplinary steps taken
No supporting documentation of SCM process followed Consequence management effected 120 400

Inconsistency in the evaluation of functionality and 
preference points calculation

Consequence management effected 1 740 000

Not following SCM process Consequence management effected 267 136

2 127 536

30. Commitments

Authorised operational expenditure

Figures in Rand 2018 2017
Already contracted for but not provided for

Outstanding contractual obligations at year-end 3 960 840 1 860 533

Other 3 264 -

3 964 104 1 860 533
Operating leases – as lessee (expense)
Minimum lease payments due

- within one year 5 235 985 4 842 836

- in second to fifth year inclusive 15 925 623 21 733 806

21 161 608 26 576 642

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Productivity SA for certain of its office properties. Leases are negotiated 
for an average term of five and rentals are smoothed over the term of the lease. No contingent rent is payable.

Figures in Rand 2018 2017
Rental expenses relating to operating leases

Minimum lease payments 5 538 671 5 163 634

31.  Contingencies
Productivity SA performed work as per a contract with the client in September 2016, the work was completed and the reports submitted 
to the client as agreed. The client has subsequently challenged the work done and is requesting that the amount of R816 000 be 
repaid. Subsequently, Productivity SA engaged with the client to resolve the matter.
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32.  Change in estimate

Property, plant and equipment
In terms of the requirement GRAP 17 Property, Plant and Equipment, which states that the useful lives of assets must be reviewed at 
each Balance Sheet date, management revised the estimated useful lives of computer equipment, furniture and equipment, motor 
vehicle, library and computer software. The effect of this revision has decreased the depreciation charges for the current and future 
periods and increased surplus for the year by R460 273.

33.  Comparative figures
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified. The effects of the reclassification are as follows in 2017:

Leave and bonus accrual were previously classified under the provisions account, are now classified as payables from exchange 
transactions. The reason is that leave and bonus are expenditure already due to employees unlike a provision which is dependent 
on a particular uncertain future event.

Payables from exchange transactions  (3 530 588)

Provisions  3 530 588

Refer to note 11 and 12 of the Annual Financial Statements.

Transnet income prepayments were previously disclosed separately and not combined with Turnaround Solutions’ deferred income. 
The two are now classified together as unspent conditional grants and receipts.

The reason for reclassification is that these two are similar in nature and do not require separate disclosure.

Unspent conditional grants and receipts  42 063 362

Deferred income  (27 990 329)

Income received in advance  (14 073 033)

Refer to note 10 of the Annual Financial Statements.

34. Events after the reporting date
Productivity SA received a payment of R6 482 357 from the Unemployment Insurance Fund(UIF) of the funds due to the entity. The 
effect was that the Turnaround Solutions Programme was able to settle outstanding liabilities. Furthermore the entity is engaging 
with UIF to pay the grant in advance.

35. Going concern
We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March 2018, the entity had an accumulated deficit of (R14 741 654) and that the entity’s total 
liabilities exceed its total assets by (R14 741 654).

The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis 
presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, 
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The ability of the entity to continue as a going concern is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of these is that 
agreed funding will be received as per the signed memorandum of association.

36. Segment information

General information

Identification of segments

The entity is organised and reports to management on the basis of three major functional areas: Productivity SA, Turnaround Solutions 
and Workplace Challenge. The segments were organised around the type of service delivered and the target market. Management 
uses these same segments for determining strategic objectives. Segments were aggregated for reporting purposes.

Information reported about these segments is used by management as a basis for evaluating the segments’ performances and for making 
decisions about the allocation of resources. The disclosure of information about these segments is also considered appropriate for external 
reporting purposes.
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Segment surplus or deficit, assets and liabilities

Figures in Rand
Productivity 

SA TAS WPC Elimination Total
2018
Revenue
Revenue from non-exchange transactions 60 064 001 33 622 476 9 299 000 - 102 985 477
Revenue from exchange transactions 20 529 959 - 2 190 312 (17 256 746) 5 463 525
Interest revenue 523 497 - 30 348 - 553 845
Gain on disposal of assets 1 767 - - - 1 767
Total segment revenue 81 119 224 33 622 476 11 519 660 (17 256 746) 109 004 614
Entity's revenue 109 004 614

Expenditure
Employee costs 48 298 030 4 117 918 12 483 815 - 64 899 763
Good and services 21 602 717 29 504 558 3 990 961 (17 256 746) 37 841 490
Total segment expenditure 69 900 747 33 622 476 16 474 776 (17 256 746) 102 741 253
Total segmental surplus 6 263 361

Assets
Segment assets 41 293 352 36 390 517 1 034 590 (59 655 949) 19 062 510
Total assets as per Statement of Financial Position 19 062 510

Liabilities
Segment liabilities 54 660 329 24 504 101 14 295 683 (59 655 949) 33 804 164
Accumulated (deficit)/surplus (13 366 977) 11 886 416 (13 261 093) - (14 741 654)
Total segment liabilities 41 293 352 36 390 517 1 034 590 (59 655 949) 19 062 510
Total net liabilities as per Statement of Financial Position 19 062 510

Productivity 
SA TAS WPC Elimination Total

2017
Revenue
Revenue from non-exchange transactions 59 056 999 19 812 866 8 823 000 - 87 692 865
Revenue from exchange transactions 11 615 939 - 2 266 091 (4 923 560) 8 958 470
Interest revenue 209 265 - 31 337 - 240 602
Gains on disposal of assets 13 758 - - - 13 758
Total segment revenue 70 895 961 19 812 866 11 120 428 (4 923 560) 96 905 695
Entity's revenue 96 905 695

Expenditure
Employee costs 42 494 936 6 307 958 13 181 889 - 61 984 783
Goods and services 21 037 473 26 252 247 4 670 552 (4 923 560) 47 036 712
Loss on foreign exchange 5 934 - - - 5 934
Total segment expenditure 63 538 343 32 560 205 17 852 441 (4 923 560) 109 027 429
Total segmental deficit (12 121 734)

Assets
Segment assets 33 225 582 40 393 304 1 331 179 (45 636 468) 29 313 597
Total assets as per Statement of Financial Position 29 313 597

Liabilities
Segment liabilities 57 811 036 28 506 888 9 637 156 (45 636 468) 50 318 612
Accumulated (deficit)/surplus (24 585 454) 11 886 416 (8 305 977) - (21 005 015)
Total segment liabilities 33 225 582 40 393 304 1 331 179 (45 636 468) 29 313 597
Total net liabilities as per Statement of Financial Position 29 313 597



PART F
CASE STUDIES
The following section is a compilation of Case 
Studies to showcase some of the projects 
Productivity SA was involved in. The Case Studies 
show how Productivity SA intervened in various 
companies and productivity-improvement 
methodologies. This section demonstrates how 
Productivity SA contributes to economic growth 
and prevents job losses whilst enabling job creation.
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Engineering Solutions Case Study
Company background
Engineering Solutions Richards Bay is an equal-opportunity company servicing the needs of the industry locally and nationally. 
The company was formed in 2008 to meet the demand from local companies for the various disciplines as a manufacturing and 
construction company. Their disciplines include structural steel work, HDPE piping, plate work, plant maintenance, mechanical fitting, 
electrical and project management.

Started in 2008 with four employees, in a 300 sqm workshop, the company has grown to 30 employees with a facility of 800 sqm. 
Engineering Solutions Richards Bay is situated in Alton, Richards Bay, in close proximity to all major corporates that help sustain the 
economic growth in Richards Bay.

Services
Engineering Solutions is a 10-year-old, Level 1 B-BBEE mechanical engineering company.

They hold expertise in various mechanical disciplines including: 

• Specialist turning;

• Tool die and jig making;

• Boiler making/welding;

• Site work and maintenance services;

• Specialised piping;

• Turnkey refit of small to medium equipment for various plants;

• Assist specialist companies in the field of Project Management; and

• Improvement ideologies from design to implementation.

Project background
Engineering Solutions joined the Transnet enterprise development programme to improve operation efficiency. The project aims are to:

• Reduce waste by 5%;

• Improve utilisation by 10%;

• Improve efficiency by 10%; and

• Improve quality by 5%.

TURNAROUND SOLUTIONS 
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Challenges
The diagram below illustrates challenges that Engineering Solutions encounter on a daily basis: 

Engineering Solutions was faced with the following challenges:

•  Unplanned overtime worked which was not quoted;

•  Overtime worked at short notice to employees;

•  Buying material at a premium due to urgency;

•  Excessive tools and consumables used;

•  More capacity allocated to jobs to speed up delivery; and

•  Suppliers having to deliver items at short notice.

Operational efficiency interventions
Four interventions were implemented during the 11 weeks. The interventions were as follows:

1. Financial analysis: To determine, via basic ratio analysis, the financial soundness of the business. 

2. Detailed analysis of sales in order to identify cost of sales drivers per product and/or per order in case of a job shop.

3. Analysis and formalisation of core business processes.

4. Establishment of a visual performance monitoring (early warning) system.

Key highlights
The following tools were used by Engineering Solutions to improve operational efficiency:

Value stream mapping 
The value stream mapping of Engineering Solutions was developed to identify gaps and constraints in the company’s operational 
processes. 

Unplanned Cost

Cost

Time Quality

Planned Cost
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Fish bone
The fish bone diagram was implemented to analyse poor on-time delivery. A fish bone diagram, also called a cause and effect diagram 
or Ishikawa diagram, is a visualisation tool for categorising the potential causes of a problem in order to identify its root causes. The 
diagram was used to analyse the root cause of poor delivery date, taking into consideration all factors that lead to poor delivery. 
Factors such as incorrect BOM (bill of material), poor utilisation of material, old equipment, heat/rain and material ordering process 
were identified as causes of late delivery. See the following figure. 

Supplier Admin Operation Management

Receive material 
document

Check if price, 
quantity and 

description are 
correct

Material 
certificate wrong

No

Yes

Check material sizes, 
type and quantity as 

per order and material 
certificate

Accept

Sign delivery 
document

Material put into 
storage

Supplier 
receives delivery 

documents

Query with 
supplier on 
discrepancy

Material receipt process



Annual Report 2017/1898  

Gantt chart
The Gantt chart is a tool that helps managers and teams to visually plan, allocate resources and track projects. It combines a table of 
tasks to be accomplished along with assignment details and timelines showing their status.

Gantt chart was implemented as a visual management tool to monitor current projects. The following activities contributed to the 
improvement of project lead time:

• Identification of critical path;

• Project progress and daily meeting to discuss status; and 

• Resources allocation. 

The implementation of Gantt chart has impacted on the resource allocation and resulted in a 33% saving on labour cost per project.
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Lesson acquired
• Gemba walk, gap, current condition, target condition have become part our vocabulary;

• The jargon of lean principles is understood and used in the operations of the business; and

• Principles adhered to “Give a man a fish and you feed him for a day, teach a man to fish and you feed him for a lifetime”.

Accomplishment: Engineering Solutions participated in the 2016 KZN Regional Productivity Awards. They were shortlisted as finalists 
in the Emerging Category. 

Achievements

Current condition-post admin process efficiency implementation: 75% of orders processed delivered on time.

30%

40%

Orders processed Actual order delivered
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SBS Tanks Case Study
Project background 
SBS Tanks was established in 1998. They design, manufacture and install Zincalume steel panel water storage tanks and reservoirs 
for the South African market, the African continent and overseas markets. The company approached Productivity SA, specifically the 
Turnaround Solutions Programme, for guidance on where improvements could be made to grow and strengthen their business. 
The business was aiming to overhaul challenges within the business which were as a result of reduced sales revenue, without the 
concomitant reduction in operational costs, as well as productivity challenges and inefficiencies in operations. The company’s liquidity 
and profitability ratios as well as the return on assets (ROA) extracted from the company’s financial assessment support the previous 
statement. However, there are areas that require attention as outlined in the financial assessment report, relating mostly to their 
marketing strategy, operational efficiencies and asset utilisation.

Several other key weaknesses have been identified during the review of SBS Tanks, including the following:

• Limited product diversification;

• No formalised export strategy in place; 

• Strategic growth and development plan has not been developed;

• Reliance on outsourced service providers;

• Inaccurate planning and scheduling due to no ERP system in place; and

• Lack of structured Health and Safety system. 

These weaknesses could adversely affect the long-term sustainability of the business. The primary aim of this turnaround project is 
to grow the existing business revenue streams that would make the business sustainable in the long term.

The proposed interventions would bring about an improvement that should ultimately result in an improved operational process, 
efficient and timeous delivery service to customers worldwide, consistent quality of service, compliance with Health and Safety 
Standards, improved communication at all levels in the organisation, improved staff morale and motivation, improved sales and 
bottom-line profit for the business.

Challenges 
As an emerging company they faced many challenges in acquiring new business to ensure continuous growth. The key areas of 
concern and challenges that were identified during the review of SBS Tanks are highlighted below:

• The availability of skilled and trained labour;

• Budget constraints associated with the recruitment of highly skilled labour;

• Black steel tanks fabrication cost as a result of outsourcing;

• Raw material costs as a percentage of sales is high;

• The fact that liquidity ratios showed movement to a less liquid position and if not managed could result in cash-flow constraints 
in the near future;

• Limited use of technology-based systems for inventory management, outsourcing and stock control; and

• Assessment of existing processes revealed levels of inefficiency and ineffective controls within the manufacturing and assembly 
process.

Productivity SA approach
The primary aim of this turnaround project was to grow the existing business revenue streams that would make the business 
sustainable in the long term.

As mentioned before, the proposed turnaround strategy was to ultimately result in an improved operational process, efficient and timeous 
delivery service to customers worldwide, consistent quality of service, compliance with Health and Safety Standards, improved communication 
at all levels in the organisation, improved staff morale and motivation, improved sales and bottom-line profit for the business.

The Future Forum, a collaborative structure representing management and employees with the purpose of actively involving 
management and labour in the programme during all its phases, was established. The above formed the basis for the development 
of a work plan outlining the turnaround strategies and required interventions.

TURNAROUND SOLUTIONS
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The proposed actions were approved by the Future Forum and Productivity SA, and consisted of several deliverables. The following 
interventions were conducted to date:

• Establishment of the Future Forum committee;

• Development of an Export Market Growth and Diversification Strategy;

• Implementation of OHSAS 18000: Safety Management System;

• Implementation of biometric access control system;

• Development of a Performance Management and Development System (PMDS);

• Business process assessment; and 

• Future Forum and Productivity Champions training.

Results and impact

Interventions
The biometric security system which was installed has resulted in improved efficiency as wage computations are now automated 
giving greater accuracy in terms of calculating wages for an employee. Adopting an international safety standard, OHSAS 18001, 
will improve the corporate image and credibility of SBS Tanks among stakeholders, customers, prospective clients and the public. 
Diversified product range will provide opportunities to increase turnover whilst utilising existing assets.

Financial
There is a turnover improvement of 47% from Financial Years 2015/16 to 2017/18 which is depicted in the figure below.

Employment
The staff complement increased by 43% between Financial Years 2014/15 to 2017/18. A total of 36 jobs were created over the 
Financial Years.

Key highlights 
• SBS Tanks were finalists in the Regional Productivity Awards held on 3 October 2017

• SBS Tanks were winners of the National Productivity Awards held on 20 October 2017
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Airventfil Case Study 

Airventfil is a growing black-owned enterprise providing employment to about 40 staff members in the manufacturing sector.

They manufacture filtration and ventilation products while offering custom-designed solutions for specific applications.  The company 
has completed numerous turnkey projects for major establishments in the commercial, mining and heavy industry sectors. As a 
black-owned filtration manufacturing company, they want to invest and promote BEE. The company boasts a competent support 
team with over 185 years of combined experience in the field of bulk air filtration.

Airventfil products and services 
Their products and services range includes: 

• Production of a comprehensive range of filters;

• Manufacturing and assembly of ventilation and filtration systems;

• Dust-control systems;

• Maintenance services for filtration, ventilation and air-conditioning equipment;

• Fume and chemical absorption systems;

• Ducting for various applications; and

• Technical consulting in filtration and ventilation technology.

The company further provides Heating, Ventilation, Air-Conditioning (HVAC) and related electrical and mechanical solutions for any 
establishment, including:

• Clean rooms;

• Heavy industry;

• Power utilities;

• Commercial; and

• Pollution control.

WORKPLACE CHALLENGE PROGRAMME
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Services in the HVAC discipline include:

• Maintenance;

• Consulting; and

• Custom Design System.

Airventfil has a lofty Vision Statement:

• To be a preferred Manufacturer and Supplier of High Quality Air Conditioning and Filtration Products and Services for all HVAC 
Companies in the SADC regions.

Their Mission Statement:

• An Engineering Solution to the Air-Conditioning Industry, offering products to their clients that are designed with both proven 
and innovative technologies, whilst nurturing their dedicated employees, to offer highest level of respect and integrity to all 
interested parties.

Their Objectives are aligned across the enterprise teams:

• Customer focus is to produce good-quality products and services; 

• On-time deliveries; and

• Making sure that all growth is strategically planned so as not to lose focus on their customers.

Their Core Values include:

• Respect;

• Integrity;

• Safety;

• Innovation;

• Flexibility; and

• Empowerment.

Airventfil joined the Workplace Challenge Programme in September 2016 and started right away 
by formulating a comprehensive plan for implementing the WPC Toolkits, consisting of Goal 
Alignment, Cleaning & Organising (also known as 5S), Teamwork and Leadership. 

They decided to do Toolkit 2 first, which was Cleaning & Organising (5S), as a good start for the 
Workplace Challenge Programme, to get every employee involved in an action which would 
produce visible results and engage everybody from the beginning.

As it happened at the time, the Gauteng-based WPC Team was also looking for a participant in a 
5S project coordinated by the Japan Productivity Center (JPC). 

Airventfil was eager to join in and therefore plunged right in with the JPC project, facilitated by 
the WPC Change Facilitator and the JPC Consultant.

Formulating a Kaizen Project to implement the 5S principles
One of the practices instilled by the Workplace Challenge Programme is to guide the implementation of the Toolkits by means of 
Kaizen Projects. 

So first, to capacitate the enterprise for the 5S Process, Arventfil formed a Kaizen Project Team for the 5S project, composed of 
Champions or Team Leaders from each of the work areas (see Table 1). As a form of teambuilding they selected funky names identified 
with distinctive photos for each of the Work Areas (the Japanese call the Work Area the “GEMBA”) (See Figure 2). 

These team names stuck and later became the MBU names. In line with the WPC Programme’s practices, each MBU or team is usually 
composed of 8 to 12 people, working towards the same purpose or delivering a specific product or service as part of the value chain.

ST
ANDARDISE SUSTAIN 

SORT STRAIGHTEN SH
IN

E  5S
 KAIZEN 

Figure 1: 5S
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Table 1: Kaizen Project Team

Area Zone Kaizen champion Position Team name
Office area Thembi Madikane Financial Controller Mighty Tigers

Sewing area Nonhlanhla Sephepha Sale Consultant Mighty Driven

Pleating area Aletta Mahlangu Filter Manufacturing TL Lions

Sheet metal works Andries Mohlaping Sheet Metal TL Zebras

Steel works Jan Ramoshaba Air Handling Unit 
Manufacturing TL

Elephants

Figure 2: Airventfil mascots

5S process steps
The 5S process is a very gratifying process, which delivers visible results and serves to rally employees towards applying continuous 
improvement principles in the workplace. It also helps to instil pride in the company and highlights the importance of teamwork.

The JPC consultant provided a conceptual framework for achieving the intended outcomes of the 5S project, explaining the detailed 
steps of the 5S process (See Figure 3):

Sort Identify and get rid of all obsolete and unneeded items

Set in order Organise that which remains after sorting

Shine Clean up

Standardise Maintain sort, set in order and shine

Self-discipline Make a habit of clean-and-organise-as-you-go

Figure 3: What are the 5S’s
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First cleaning and organising audit
Before implementing the 5S practices, the WPC Change Facilitator conducted a 5S Audit on the enterprise in order to determine the 
level of performance on 5S (see Figure 4): 

Figure 4: Cleaning and Organising Audit 

The outcome of the October and November Audits was that they helped the Kaizen Project Team to identify 5S projects focused on 
various aspects of 5S (i.e. Cleaning and Organising) such as:

• RED TAGGING AND YELLOW TAGGING (S1 – Sorting and Discarding)

• WASTE ELIMINATION (S1 – Sorting and Discarding)

• DEMARCATION (S2 – Set in order/Organising)

• SIGNPOSTING/COLOUR CODING (S2)

• PAINTING AND CLEANING OF MACHINERY (S3)

• PAINTING OF PRODUCTION AREA (S3)

Result of 5S Projects
On 25 January 2017, in a public seminar at the Hilton Hotel in Sandton, Johannesburg, which was intended “to disseminate the 
achievement of Productivity Improvement Techniques (5S and Kaizen) in selected model companies in the Republic of South Africa”, 
a group of seminar participants were impressed by Airventfil team’s proud presentation of feedback on the Kaizen Project that they 
implemented between September 2016 and January 2017. 

Although the enterprise has been working on the WPC programme for only a short time, and focusing only on the Toolkit of Cleaning 
and Organising (5S), the team described a number of valuable results of the 5S process:

• The whole enterprise first started with the S1 process (Sort and Discard). Everybody participated in a Yellow Tagging exercise 
with the purpose of sorting through materials and equipment to identify and get rid of unneeded items. Also part of S1, the 
enterprise did a Red Tagging exercise to identify equipment that is unsafe and in need of repairs (see Figure 5):

Figure 5: Yellow and Red Tagging
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• The S1 process had the benefit of freeing up space and helping to find tools, equipment and materials with less effort (see Figure 6):

Figure 6: Impact of S1

• Other Mini-business Units implemented S2, which was intended to help the enterprise achieve a better sense of order in the 
workplace by creating storage space for tools and equipment, and doing signposting. These steps had the benefit of Visual 
Management; it made it easier to move around safely on the shopfloor; it put a stop to wasting time searching for misplaced 
tools (see Figures 7, 8 and 9):

Figure 7: Effect of S2
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Figure 8: Effect of S2

Figure 9: Effect of S2
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• Other Mini-business Units progressed to S3, which was intended to help team members working out a process for cleaning 
or shining the workplace. These steps had the benefit of impacting positively on the quality of products processed in the 
workplace; it created a sense of wellbeing and pride among staff; it contributed to the ease of maintenance of equipment (see 
Figures 10 and 11):

Figure 10: Impact of S3

Figure 11: Impact of S3
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Follow-up Cleaning and Organising Audit
To keep the momentum after implementing the 5S projects, the WPC Change Facilitator conducted a second 5S Audit on the 
enterprise in order to determine the level of performance on 5S, which corroborated the improvements. The whole of the enterprise 
progressed from level 1 to level 3 in the space of 2 months (see Figure 12): 

Figure 12: Second Cleaning and Organising Audit

Interim achievements 
When asked about the impact that the Workplace Challenge Programme, and 5S in particular, has had so far on the performance of 
the enterprise as a whole, Mr Shimi Mokonyane, Operations Manager, said:

• “I’m happy that a culture of continuous improvement is taking hold at Airventfil

• The mindset of employees has improved – there is a sense of ownership/responsibility these days

• There is more of a safety awareness or attitude of “Think first before you act” among employees

• Already there is better collaboration between management and employees 

• The workplace is starting to become clean and organised 

• They have established Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) for some of their products/processes, such as for Work in Process 
(WIP), and easy and simple QC check sheets

• We have established Visual Management Dashboards

• Waste is identified and quantified, whereas in the past it was difficult to measure waste”.

The next steps in the Workplace Challenge Programme
While continuing to address the gaps identified by the first and second Cleaning and Organising Audits and Coaching Reviews, 
Airventfil has recently decided to start on the Goal Alignment Toolkit of the Workplace Challenge Programme. 

They want to make sure that every employee pursues the same goals and that they can measure performance accurately. They seem 
to be well settled on the road to world class, and already sold on the benefits of continuous improvement!
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SANACO Case Study

From left to right: SANACO President: Mr Lawrence Bale, Department of Small Business Development Deputy Minister: Mr Cassel 
Mathale, SANACO Capricorn coordinator: Mr S Mokoele, LEDET MEC: Mr Seaparo Sekoati and Productivity SA Senior Manager:  
Ms Dimakatso Phiri at a SANACO Limpopo 2017/18 certificate ceremony on 20 April 2018, where 847 certificates were issued as follows; 
Sekhukhune (138), Vhembe (317) and Capricorn (392).

Introduction
In 2017/18 Productivity SA and South African National Apex Cooperative (SANACO) reached out to a total of 1 455 cooperative members 
with a target of 1 200. The Business Start-Up Workshops assisted SANACO cooperative members to demonstrate an understanding 
of productivity concept, its values and benefits, how to measure and improve productivity, development of business plans and the 
management of cost in order to realise customer requirements, satisfaction and profitability. 

 The case study on SANACO Business Start-Up Workshops (BSUW) explains the national coverage, the effectiveness of the training 
based on the evaluation by cooperative members, highlights, impacts, challenges and recommendations. It provides much-needed 
evidence of the enormity of work required to increase both government and private sector support to entrepreneurship activities 
in the country.

Target population and entry requirements
The workshop was aimed at 1 200 SANACO cooperative members who met the following minimum entry requirements:

• A business start-up and/or existing business; 

• Owners must have attended the Start-up Programme before they can send their employees;

• Delegates require basic arithmetic for the measurements done in the workshop; 

• Commitment to attend and complete the three modules; and

• Submission of completed business plans.

PRODUCTIVITY ORGANISATIONAL SOLUTIONS
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National footprint 
Nationally five provinces were provided with Business Start-Up Workshops with a total of 1 455 cooperatives trained. The graph below 
unpacks contributions by each province.

In descending order the provinces are as follows: Limpopo (847), Eastern Cape (364), North West (90), Gauteng (88) and Free State (66).

Provincial footprint
The provinces are graphically represented in the order of most delegates trained.

Limpopo

Limpopo tops the provinces with the total number trained (847) and total females (674) and males (173), all trained by four Productivity SA 
Facilitators (Rose Morweng, Lebogang Matsie, Sivuyile Mdidimba and Mpho Mathelemusa).
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Eastern Cape

Eastern Cape is the second province with the total number trained (364) with total females (268) and males (96) trained, all trained 
by one Productivity SA Facilitator (Thembinkosi Mngoma).

North West

North West is the third province with the total number trained (90) with total females (56) and males (34), all trained by two 
Productivity SA Facilitators (L Matsie and S Mdidimba).
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Gauteng 

Gauteng is the fourth province with the total number trained (88) with total females (53) and males (35), all trained by three 
Productivity SA Facilitators (R Pholose, S Mdidimba and P Zondi).

Free State

Free State is the fifth province with the total number trained (66) with total females (28) and males (38), all trained by one Productivity SA 
Facilitator (Lebogang Matsie).
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Highlights 
Highlights include the following:

• A total of 1 455 cooperative members were trained, of which 1 079 were women, 376 males, 687 youth and 24 people with 
disabilities.

• The 1 455 consisted of 42 training groups, with a training group consisting of an average of 35 cooperative members.

• SANACO delegates’ satisfaction percentage on both course content and trainer is 95% and 96% respectively.

• Training took place in five provinces as follows: Limpopo (847), Eastern Cape (364), North West (90), Gauteng (88) and Free State (66).

• Radio interview held with Turfloop radio on 8 September 2017 whereby Productivity SA, SANACO coordinator and two of the 
cooperative members were able to share with the community of Molepo, Ditlhopaneng the benefits of the workshops and 
roles of the two partners.

• LEDET, SANACO and Productivity SA collaborated and held a certificate ceremony on 16 October 2017, in Makhado-Vleifontein 
community hall. A total of 501 certificates were issued from the 2016/17 Financial Year and 847 were issued for 2017/18 Financial Year.

• The cooperatives are predominantly from the following sectors of our economy: Manufacturing (catering, baking, sewing, 
cleaning waste management), agriculture (farming, piggery and poultry), services, construction and transport.

• Delegates were enthusiastic and grateful for being given the opportunity to be empowered.

• Hands-on and useful tips on business improvements and increasing profitability.

• Training was attended by diverse groups, including senior citizens, the youth, people with disabilities, elderly pastors and some 
illiterate people.

• Trainers’ experience and skill enabled them to translate productivity and business concepts into their home languages.

• Relevance of the material to their businesses.

• Demonstration of applying productivity values in their everyday lives.

• Some regional coordinators attended the full training programme to have a full understanding of the whole process.

• Demonstrated a healthy competitive spirit between different teams which were presenting their business plans especially in 
Gauteng and in some cases in the Eastern Cape whereby cooperative members shared knowledge and best practice.

• Delegates divided themselves into groups based on the skills required by various sections of the feasibility study, for example, 
the person who has bookkeeping skills and knowledge would lead the group that prepares a projected Cash Flow Statement, 
Income Statement and the Balance Sheet.

• Some cooperatives themselves have taken over the catering responsibilities and maintained a roster which made it easy for 
groups to attend training according to the schedule.

• Access to markets is encouraged through products showcasing or exhibitions during the training.

Challenges
The challenges experienced during the training include the following:

• No training took place in the following provinces: KwaZulu-Natal, Northern Cape, Western Cape and Mpumalanga.

• Due to budgetary constraints cooperative members could not present their business plans/feasibility studies in provinces such 
as Limpopo and the Free State.

• Some workshops were postponed due to poor attendance of cooperatives, although these incidents were relatively isolated.

• Delegates in some areas/venues were apparently not briefed about the workshop and its entry requirements which made the first 
day of the workshop difficult with regard to total number per facilitator, training material, catering and training venue capacity.

• The suitability of the venues in some regions were sub-standard and required more proactive effort from the coordinators 
involved with the securing of the venue.

• Most groups had problems putting together projected Cash Flow Statements, Income Statements and Balance Sheets which 
indicated an increased need for more in-depth financial literacy training.

• The quality of catering in the various regions differed although catering specifications were agreed to in advance.

Recommendations
The partnership agreement to be based on training needs that are well assessed and funded covering the national provincial footprint 
and balancing the target in favour of the rural provinces.
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Korema Farms Case Study
Who is Korema Farms? 

Refilwe Mokgohloa with, from left, Mr Thulani Sukazi, Sibongile Nkabinde and Welheminah Mothwa. Refilwe has also attended BPIW 
and 5S as made possible by UJ-CSBD and Productivity SA.

Korema Farms is situated in Winterveldt, a peri-urban area, 50km north of the City of Tshwane, Gauteng. Korema Farms started in 
1995 as KDA CC. Korema Farms changed its focus and from growing cucumbers and peppers in 2008, and the farm is now involved 
in agro-processing.

Korema Cooperative is a hydroponic cucumber and pepper grower, vegetable processor and cattle farm. The entire production, 
processing and supply takes place on four properties of 5ha each. 

Korema Cooperative is the only cucumber farm in Winterveldt and the biggest in Pretoria and the surrounding area with 6 000 square 
metres of hydroponics. They currently harvest 23 fruits per plant and have managed to increase their production to a monthly average 
of 13 500 cucumbers. The benefits of the hydroponic system are:

• Reduction in  water waste;

• Avoidance of over irrigating;

• Increase in production; and

• A reduction in electricity costs.

In their productivity approach, measures like delivery, cost and quality have been implemented by the cooperative and aligned to 
their strategy in terms of growing output volumes, cost reduction, improved quality and profitability. These measures are reviewed 
monthly and quarterly adjustments are made. Korema Cooperative employs 25 permanent staff members. 

As a result of their productivity initiatives over the period 2015 to 2017:

• Total revenue growth year-on-year of 10% with an increase from 7.3% to 34%;

• Output number of boxes increased from 22 700 to 25 200 boxes;

• As a result of improved quality, number of returns decreased from 15 boxes to 0 boxes;

• Number of employees increased from 24 to 25;

• Sales turnover % year-on-year growth increased from 7.3% to 27%.

The cooperative obtained Good Agricultural Practice (GAP) accreditation and as part of their Corporate Social Investment Programme, 
they donate vegetables to Care-Net Development and Support Organisation as well as Tshenolo Wellness – a Christian-based non-profit 
organisation (NPO). Korema Primary Cooperative Limited is living up to their vision to offer outstanding quality solutions in vegetable 
production and processing within the Winterveldt community thereby creating employment opportunities within their community.

The cooperative has achieved several awards, from management to employees. Some of the awards are: 

• Kobela Mokgohloa, Best Young Farmer, Informal and Formal Markets of 2013 and 2014; and

• Welheminah Mothwa, Best Female Farm-worker of 2014 by the Gauteng Department of Agriculture.

PRODUCTIVITY ORGANISATIONAL SOLUTIONS
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Who are the role-players 
Korema Farms could not have achieved this without the support of the following government and private-sector role-players:

Productivity SA and the University of Johannesburg 
Productivity SA and the University of Johannesburg – Soweto Campus’s Centre for Small Business Development (CSBD), signed 
an 18/82 cost-sharing agreement respectively to provide a Business Performance Improvement Workshop (BPIW) including 5S to 
Korema Farms and another 32 small enterprises from various sectors such as retail, wholesale, construction, transport, textile, farming, 
recycling, bakery, furniture and stock markets. 

Thebe Foundation
• Provided funding for two boreholes and water dam (30 000 litre);

• Funded the CSBD to secure the Business Performance Improvement Workshop (BPIW) including 5S;

• Provided funding for each individual business plan provided the minimum requirements were met; and

• Assisted with access to markets through its networks of stakeholders and partners.

Gauteng Department of Agriculture and Rural Development (GDARD)
• In 2005 GDARD erected three tunnels; and 

• In 2011 GDARD erected a pack house and cold storage. 

Implementation process
We structured the workshop into a six-day programme to allow for less time away from business operations. This also gave each 
business four weeks to implement, while having access to coaching by the Productivity SA team. BPIW and 5S presentations were 
submitted for evaluation before they were allowed to be presented on 27 September 2017. This provided a coaching opportunity 
to all those that took the initiative to implement the workshop tools.

16/08/17  
Classroom day 1

23 & 30/08/17 
Classroom days  

2 and 3
06/09/17 

Site visit 1
12/09/17 

Site visit 2
27/09/17 

Presentations
Module 1 Productivity 
concept and waste 
elimination

30 SMMEs attended 

Modules 2 and 3 
Introducing 5S, 
Efficiency and Early 
Warning System (EWS)

28 and 24 SMMEs 
attended respectively

Siyeza Shop 
Vosloorus

The Scone Madame 
Boutique Bakery 
Centurion

1. Nosisa Sedi

2. Refilwe Mokgohloa 

3. Gape Dlamini

4. Gugulethu Kunene

5. Kgotso Bodibe

Highlights
• Korema Farms won the National Productivity Awards in the category Cooperative Sector for their productive approach to operations. 

Voluntary participation after encouragement by the Workplace Challenge Programme Change Facilitator: Molebogeng Monagane.

• Attendance was on average 83%. 

• Transport was arranged for both site visits and this assisted with time management and attendance.

• Korema Farms took second when BPIW and 5S presentations were evaluated. Scores were as follows from good (4) to average (3): 
Nosisa Sedi (4), Refilwe Mokgohloa (3.8), Gape Dlamini (3.7), Kgotso Bodibe (3.6) and Gugulethu Kunene (3.33).

• The delegates’ evaluation of workshop content and trainer competency are both at 100%. 

• Application of the Early Warning System and 5S was the highlight of the workshop (see Korema Farms Action Plan) below.
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Korema Farms action plan
Activity 

no. Action required Area
Who is 

responsible
Start 
date End date Remark

1 Wastage reduction 
plan 

Processing All staff members Oct 2017 Dec 2017 Have more fridges in 
summer 

2 Labour efficiency 
improvement plan

Processing and 
cucumbers

All staff members Oct 2017 Dec 2017 Divide staff (processing)

Employ more staff in 
summer (cucumbers)

3 Tunnel upgrade Cucumbers Director Feb 2018 Apr 2018 Land Bank loan

4 Sales improvement Cucumbers Manager June 2018 Dec 2018 Heating in winter 2018

5 Cost management 
plan/cost savings

Cucumbers Manager Feb 2018 Dec 2018 Bulk seeds and fertiliser

6 5S Processing Manager Feb 2018 Dec 2018 Not started 

Lessons learned 
• Continued implementation of the workshop tools sustain continuous business performance improvement and allow for 

comparison from daily, weekly monthly, quarterly and yearly records.

• Coaching and mentoring is required to correctly plan, do, check and action, not forgetting celebrating success.

• The issue of access to markets and financial support needs attention and mobilisation of both government and private sector 
is critical.

• Programmes need to be customised for best fit in order to optimise on the impact to both the business owners and communities 
around them.

• Training of the whole team is very important in sustaining productivity improvement and competitiveness.

• Early Warning System assisted small business owners to keep records of the key performance indicators such as wastage, sales, 
cost, quality, efficiency and profit visually and to encourage team members to understand how they are measured, how to set 
targets and deal with challenges that hamper achievement of targets.

• Presentation skills very important for unique selling propositions.

• The BPIW does not claim to be a one-size-fits-all solution, as concerted effort needs to be established with suitable partners to 
take care of business finance, marketing and capital requirements.

Conclusion 
Productivity SA supports the progressive work done by UJ CSBD to collaborate with Thebe Foundation and roll out business 
performance-improvement workshops and related productivity themes and continue to customise for best fit in order to optimise 
on the impact to both the business owners and communities around them.

The work done by both Thebe Foundation and the Gauteng Department of Agriculture is worth celebrating as it supports the 
objectives of employment creation, poverty alleviation and reduction of inequality.

Congratulations to Korema Primary Cooperative Limited (Korema Farms) and we wish them success in the implementation of their 
Action Plans and tunnel upgrade project that are bound to increase sales, employment and profitability.
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